
131 Central Street  Foxborough, MA  02035 

 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

September 8, 2020  6:15 p.m. 
MS/HS Cafeteria 

 

AGENDA 
1. Call to Order  

2. Awards, Honors, and Recognitions 

3. Board Committee Reports 

3.1. Enrollment Committee 

3.2. Facilities Committee 

3.3. Finance Committee  

3.3.1. FY2020 Draft Independent Financial Audit 

3.3.2. Ultraviolet and Air Purification Systems 

3.4. Governance Committee  

4. Special Reports 

4.1. Leadership Report  

4.1.1. Re-Opening Planning 

4.1.2. Staff Orientation 

4.1.3. Personnel Update  

4.1.4. Race and Social Justice 

4.2. Foxborough Regional Charter School Foundation Report 

4.3. Partners In Education (PIE) Report 

4.4. English Learner Parent Advisory Committee (ELPAC) Report 

4.5. Special Education Parent Advisory Committee (SEPAC) Report 

5. Policy Review  

6. Old Business   

7. New Business  

8. Approval of the Minutes 

8.1. June 26, 2020 

8.2. July 14, 2020 

8.3. August 4, 2020 

8.4. August 11, 2020 

8.5. September 1, 2020 

9. Privilege of the Floor  Members of the audience who wish to address the board may do so during this portion of 
the meeting.  Forms for Privilege of Floor for items other than those on the agenda must be submitted by noon the 
day before the board meeting. 

10. Items for Next Board Meeting  

11. Adjournment 
 

The listed matters are those reasonably anticipated by the Chair to be discussed at the meeting. Not all items listed may in fact be 
discussed and other items not listed may be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. 
 

Publicly posted:  September 3, 2020 at 3:30 p.m. 
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2020-2021 Enrollment Report 
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Grade Pre Enrollment Report Current Enrollment 

K 146 163 

1 146 151 

2 146 158 

3 146 156 

4 146 156 

5 146 158 

6 146 155 

7 146 148 

8 147 155 

9 120 125 

10 103 98 

11 89 86 

12 63 63 

Total 1690 1772 
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Dedham Executive Center, 990 Washington Street, Suite 308A, Dedham, Massachusetts 02026 (617) 262-9898 Fax (617) 437-9937 

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Board of Trustees of 
Foxborough Regional Charter School  
 
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying statements of net position of Foxborough Regional Charter 
School (a governmental entity) (the School), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, 
and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the 
years then ended and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
School’s financial statements.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the School, as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the respective changes in 
its financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 1, Foxboro Regional Charter School Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation), a 
related nonprofit organization, was evaluated in conformance with Government Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units and it 
was determined that it should be reported as a blended component unit of the School and 
consequently the financial information included within the School’s financial statements. The 
nature and extent of the financial activity of the Foundation was not significant to the School 
overall, therefore it was excluded from the School’s financial statement presentation.   

Other Matters  

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 7 be presented to supplement the 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the School’s financial statements. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is not a required part of the financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to 
the financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated Open 
Date, on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering School’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance.

Open Date 



Foxborough Regional Charter School
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2020 (Unaudited) 
 

- 4 - 
 

The following management’s discussion and analysis of Foxborough Regional Charter School’s 
(the School) financial performance provides an overview of the School's financial activities for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, with comparative information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2019. Please read it in conjunction with the financial statements and the related notes, which begin 
on page 8. 

The School as a Whole

The School received their charter on July 1, 1998 to operate as a public charter school in the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The charter is awarded in five-year increments and is subject 
to renewal at the discretion of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Board of Elementary and 
Secondary Education. The School’s charter was most recently renewed for an additional five years 
effective July 1, 2018. During fiscal years 2020 and 2019, the School operated kindergarten 
through grade twelve and the enrollment was comprised of approximately 1,658 and 1,619 
students, respectively. At capacity the School’s maximum enrollment totals 1,700. 
 
The School’s mission statement is: to provide students a challenging academic program to prepare 
them for college by stressing achievement, discipline, hard work and accountability.

Financial Reporting Entity 

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, and in conformance with Government 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity and GASB 
Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Schools Are Component Units and subsequently 
amended by GASB No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus – an amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 14 and No. 34 and GASB No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component 
Units, the School evaluated its potential component unit and determined that the Foxborough
Regional Charter School Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is a component unit of the School and 
should be presented as blended component unit in the financial statements. Management determined 
that the nature and extent of the financial activity of the Foundation was not significant to the School 
as a whole, therefore it was not included as a blended component unit of the School.   
 
Using This Annual Report  

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. GASB Statement No. 34 - Financial 
Statement – Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments (GASB No. 
34), the School is considered a special purpose government entity that engages in only business 
type activities. All of the financial activity of the School is recorded in an enterprise fund within 
the proprietary fund group in accordance with GASB No. 34 and GASB No. 63 Financial Reporting 
of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, the School 
issues a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
and a Statement of Cash Flows. These statements provide information about the financial activities 
of the School, as a whole. This annual report also contains notes to the financial statements and
other information that is essential to a full understanding of the financial statements and the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards which identifies all of the School’s Federal funding.
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Financial Statements 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 
deferred inflows of resources, and net position of the School as a whole, as of the end of the fiscal 
years. The Statement of Net Position is a point-in-time financial statement. The purpose of this 
statement is to present a fiscal snapshot of the School to the readers of the financial statements.
Assets are resources with present service capacity that the School presently controls. A deferred 
inflow of resources is an acquisition of net assets by the School that is applicable to a future 
reporting period. Liabilities are present obligations to sacrifice resources that the School has little 
or no discretion to avoid. A deferred outflow of resources is a consumption of net assets by the 
School that is applicable to a future reporting period. Net position represents the difference 
between all other elements in a statement of financial position and is displayed in three 
components—net investment in capital assets; restricted (distinguishing between major categories 
of restrictions); and unrestricted.  
  
The net investment in capital assets component of net position, which consists of capital assets, 
net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, 
or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
capital assets. 
 
The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities. 
Generally, a liability relates to restricted assets if the asset results from a resource flow that also 
results in the recognition of a liability or if the liability will be liquidated with the restricted assets 
reported. 
 
The unrestricted component of net position is the net amount of the assets, liabilities, and deferred 
inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets 
or the restricted component of net position. 
 
Over time, readers of the financial statements will be able to evaluate the School’s fiscal health 
(liquidity and solvency) or financial position by analyzing the increases and decreases in net 
position to determine if the School’s financial health is improving or deteriorating. The reader will 
also need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions and new 
or amended charter school legislation when evaluating the overall financial health of the School. 
This statement is also a good source for readers to determine how much the School owes to vendors 
and creditors and the available assets that can be used to satisfy those liabilities.  

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position reports the financial (revenue 
and expenses) activities of the School and divides it into two categories: Operating activities and 
Non-operating activities. Operating activities include all financial activities associated with the 
operation of the School and its related programs. Consequently, all non-operating activities include 
all financial activities not related to the operation of a charter school. Changes in total net position, 
as presented on the Statement of Net Position, are based on the activity presented in this statement. 
This statement helps to determine whether the School had sufficient revenues to cover expenses 
during the year and its net increase or decrease in net position based on current year operations.
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Financial Statements – Continued  
 
The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about the School’s cash receipts and cash 
payments during the fiscal year. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net 
changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, and capital and noncapital financing 
activities and provides answers to such questions as “from where did cash come?,” “for what was 
cash used?,” and “what was the change in the cash balance during the reporting period?” This 
statement also is an important tool in helping users assess the School’s ability to generate future 
net cash flows, its ability to meet its obligations as they come due, and its need for external 
financing. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the information provided in the School’s financial statements. 
 
Supplemental Information 

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for the purposes of additional 
analysis as required by the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. The 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards can be found on page 25 of this report.  

Financial Highlights 

The following financial highlights are for the School for fiscal year 2020 and include comparative 
information from fiscal year 2019:  
 

 The School held total assets of $53,657,819 and $52,581,299 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, 
respectively, of which $39,616,429 and $39,428,268 were net capital assets. The majority 
of the remaining assets consisted of cash, receivables and debt service reserve funds. The 
increase in total assets was largely due to an increase in cash as a result of a surplus in
operating activities, as well as a significant amount of capital additions.  
 

 The School held total liabilities of $39,737,937 and $40,285,760 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, 
respectively. In 2020, the School held $4,103,754 in current liabilities and $35,634,183 in 
noncurrent liabilities. In 2019, the School held $3,648,553 in current liabilities and 
$36,637,207 in noncurrent liabilities. The decrease in liabilities is largely due to the decrease 
in bonds payable, as the bonds are paid down annually. 
 

 Total net position for the School was $17,252,923 and $15,602,330 at June 30, 2020 and 
2019, respectively, of which $10,562,418 and $10,240,846 were unrestricted and 
$6,690,505 and $5,361,484 were for net investment in capital assets, respectively. As of 
June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Board of Trustees has designated $124,423 and $85,762, 
respectively, of unrestricted net assets for the self-insured dental program and $3,565,006 
and $4,163,131, respectively, of unrestricted net assets for future capital purchases.  
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Financial Highlights – Continued  
 

 The School earned total revenues (excluding on-behalf pension) of $25,902,445 and 
$25,123,363 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, of which 98% were 
operating revenues and 2% were from non-operating revenues for the fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2020 and 2019. 
 

 The School had a total expenses (excluding on-behalf pension) of $24,251,852 and 
$22,853,226 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and 93% were 
operating expenses and 7% for both years were from non-operating expenses.  
 

 The School had a change in net position of $1,650,593 and $2,270,137 for the years ended 
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. In fiscal year 2020, the change in net position was 
comprised of operating income of $2,767,694 and a non-operating loss of $1,117,101. The 
non-operating loss is largely due to interest expense. In fiscal year 2019, the change in net 
position was comprised of operating income of $3,596,923 and a non-operating loss of 
$1,326,786. The non-operating loss is partially due to interest expense relating to bonds 
issued for the construction of new classrooms in 2017, as well as other ongoing construction 
projects. 

 
Budgetary Highlights 

 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the School incurred $24,251,852 in actual expenditures 
excluding $3,701,444 of on-behalf expenses, compared to budgeted expenditures of $25,365,142. 
The main reason for the decrease in actual over budgeted expenditures was due to a decrease in 
certain in person activities, which were curtailed in response to the COVID19 pandemic, and 
related quarantine and shutdown requirements. 
 
For fiscal year 2020, the School budgeted tuition revenue of $23,112,250 which approximated the 
actual revenue of $23,094,839.  
 
School’s Financial Activities 
 
The majority of the School’s funding is received from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
Department of Elementary and Secondary Education and is based on the standard rate per pupil. 
The School received $23,094,839 in per pupil funding in fiscal year 2020, versus $22,077,132 in 
per pupil funding in fiscal year 2019. This represents 89% and 88% of the School’s revenue, 
excluding on-behalf revenue, for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. In addition, 
the School received various Federal and Commonwealth of Massachusetts grants, which totaled 
$903,181 and $1,022,313 for fiscal years 2020 and 2019, respectively.   
 
Contacting the School’s Financial Management 
 
This financial report is designed to provide the reader with a general overview of the School’s 
finances and to show accountability of the funds received. If you have any questions about this 
report or need additional financial information, contact the Business Office of the School.  
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2020 2019
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 10,117,141$       7,608,257$         
Grants and accounts receivable 226,497              2,084,884           
Prepaid expenses 73,483                -                      

Total current assets 10,417,121         9,693,141           

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets, net 39,616,429         39,428,268         
Escrow project fund -                      2,680                  
Debt service reserve fund 3,624,269           3,457,210           

Total noncurrent assets 43,240,698         42,888,158         

Total assets 53,657,819         52,581,299         

Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Deferred charge on refunding 3,472,576           3,634,091           

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 57,130,395$       56,215,390$       

2020 2019
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,090,988$         792,620$            
Accrued compensation 1,485,531           1,346,466           
Accrued interest payable 611,225              620,000              
Capital lease obligation - current 12,280                11,689                
Bonds payable - current 903,730              877,778              

Total current liabilities 4,103,754           3,648,553           

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Bonds payable, net of current portion 35,562,832         36,553,576         
Capital lease obligation, net of current portion 71,351                83,631                

Total noncurrent liabilities 35,634,183         36,637,207         

Total liabilities 39,737,937         40,285,760         

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Revenues for future periods 139,535              327,300              

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 6,690,505           5,361,484           
Unrestricted 10,562,418         10,240,846         

Total net position 17,252,923         15,602,330         

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources

and net position 57,130,395$       56,215,390$       

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position
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2020 2019
Operating revenues:

Tuition 23,094,839$     22,077,132$      
Federal and state grants 689,300            690,480             
Food service program 383,766            606,958             
Transportation 750,939 834,763
Other program fees 131,747 161,628
Extended care program 229,954 320,936
On-behalf pension 3,701,444         2,449,577          

Total operating revenues 28,981,989       27,141,474        

Operating expenses:
Salaries 13,493,721 12,540,440
Payroll taxes 464,620 454,823
Fringe benefits 1,856,742         1,768,172          

Total salary, taxes and related benefits 15,815,083 14,763,435

Contracted services 240,506 158,293
Depreciation 2,035,298 1,871,632
Dues and fees 185,228 112,365
Extended day program 9,174 12,644
Field trips and competitions 88,485 127,371
Food services program expenses 446,430 537,172
Furniture, equipment and software 193,597 232,038
Insurance 170,353 148,507
Maintenance and supplies 721,843 752,740
Miscellaneous 168,096 98,279
Occupancy costs 457,034 504,854
Office supplies, printing and postage 179,054 187,448
On-behalf pension 3,701,444         2,449,577          
Professional development 42,454 37,947
Professional services 66,291 45,495
Student life programs 41,293 68,589
Student supplies and materials 361,248 330,584
Telephone 29,961 30,142
Transportation 1,152,625 995,824
Vehicle and equipment leases 85,548              79,615               
Bad debt 23,250              -                    

Total operating expenses 26,214,295       23,544,551        

Net operating income 2,767,694         3,596,923          

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Interest expense (1,736,558)        (1,755,140)        
Fundraising 2,443                18,112               
Fundraising expense (2,443)               (3,112)               
Interest income 187,042            190,859             
Investment income 69,324              66,334               
Private grants and contributions 275,656            52,719               
Rental income 87,435              103,442             

Net non-operating expenses (1,117,101)        (1,326,786)        

Change in net position 1,650,593         2,270,137          

Net position, beginning of the year 15,602,330       13,332,193        

Net position, end of the year 17,252,923$     15,602,330$      
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2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities:
  Receipts from per student tuition 24,949,516$        $20,025,735
  Receipts from federal and state grants 520,862               582,189               
  Receipts from educational fees 1,344,193            1,852,753            
  Other receipts 136,596               156,775               
  Payments to employees (15,676,018)        (14,548,213)         
  Payments to suppliers and vendors (4,371,860)          (4,624,759)           

          Net cash provided by operating activities 6,903,289            3,444,480            

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
  Purchases of capital assets (2,223,459)          (1,432,755)           
  Principal payments on bonds (877,777)             (348,494)              
  Interest paid on capital lease (11,689)               -                       

          Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (3,112,925)          (1,781,249)           

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Non-operating revenue 621,900               431,466               
   Non-operating expenses (1,739,001)          (1,758,252)           

     Net cash used in investing activities (1,117,101)          (1,326,786)           

     Net increase in cash 2,673,263            336,445               

         Cash, beginning of year 11,068,147          10,731,702          

         Cash, end of year 13,741,410$        11,068,147$        

Reconciliation of net operating income to
  net cash provided by operating activities:

  Operating income 2,767,694$          $3,596,923

  Adjustments to reconcile the income from operations 
    to net cash provided by operating activities
     Depreciation 2,035,298            1,871,632            

     Amortization 74,500                 74,500                 

Decrease/(increase) in:

     State and federal receivable 1,858,387            (1,861,051)           

     Prepaid expense (73,483)               2,333                   

Increase (decrease) in:

     Accounts payable and accrued expenses 298,368               (226,395)              

     Accrued compensation and interest 130,290               199,932               

     Deferred grant revenue (187,765)             (213,394)              

         Net cash provided by operating activities 6,903,289$          3,444,480$          
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1. Nature of School 

Foxborough Regional Charter School was established on July 1, 1998 after receiving their charter 
from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts under Chapter 71 Section 89 of the General Laws of 
Massachusetts. The School’s charter is awarded in five year increments and is subject to 
renewal at the discretion of the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary 
Education (DESE). The School’s charter expires June 30, 2023. The DESE provided 93% and 
92% of funding to the School for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 respectively, through 
per pupil tuition and federal grants.  

The School has one location in Foxborough, Massachusetts and offers children in the towns of 
Easton, Canton, Foxborough, Mansfield, Medway, Millis, Norfolk, North Attleboro, Norton, 
Norwood, Plainville, Raynham, Sharon, Stoughton, Walpole, West Bridgewater and Wrentham, 
and the cities of Attleboro, Avon and Brockton, in grades kindergarten through twelve, a publicly
supported academic education. During fiscal years 2020 and 2019, the School served 1,658  and 
1,619 children, respectively.  
 
The Foxborough Regional Charter School Foundation, Inc., (the Foundation) was established 
during fiscal year 2019 and is a legally separate, tax-exempt organization that acts primarily as a 
fundraising organization to supplement the resources of the School. The Foundation is exempt 
from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Because these 
resources can only be used by or for the benefit of the School, the Foundation is considered a 
component unit of the School. However, management determined that the nature and extent of 
the financial activity of the Foundation was not significant to the School as a whole, therefore it 
was not included as a blended component unit of the School.   
 
The School’s mission is as follows: 
 

The Foxborough Regional Charter School will provide students a challenging academic 
program to prepare them for college by stressing achievement, discipline, hard work and 
accountability. We will continually challenge all of our students, regardless of ability, so 
that we will lead the Commonwealth of Massachusetts in all statewide standards and 
assessments. 
 
The Foxborough Regional Charter School will promote positive ethical, moral, and civic 
values and prepare students to serve their respective communities as leaders and good 
citizens. We will present students with projects and issues requiring critical thinking, 
problem-solving, decision-making, and real life applications of their academic studies 
through our Student Life and Community Service Learning programs which are integral 
components of the overall educational experience at Foxborough Regional Charter School.  
 
The Foxborough Regional Charter School will commit itself to providing a supportive, 
professional, and challenging environment for its teachers and staff which recognizes the 
value of professional development, creativity, and initiative. We will constantly seek new 
ways to allow our teachers and staff to perform to the best of their potential in a collegial 
atmosphere which recognizes unique talents and the commitment to excel.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
 The accounting policies of the School conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States of America, as applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the 
School’s significant accounting policies: 

 
 Financial Reporting Entity  

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, and in conformance with the 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements No. 14, The Financial Reporting 
Entity and GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component 
Units and subsequently amended by GASB No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus – 
an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 3, and GASB No. 80, Blending Requirements 
for Certain Component Units, the School evaluated its potential component unit to determine the 
reporting entity. The nature and extent of the financial activity of the Foundation was not 
significant to the School as a whole, therefore it was not included as a blended component unit in 
the reporting entity.    

 
Financial Statement Presentation 
The School, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 34 - Basic Financial Statement – and 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, is considered a 
special purpose governmental entity that engages in only business type activities and is not a 
component unit of another governmental entity.  Therefore, the financial statements are prepared 
using the accrual basis of accounting and all of the activity is recorded in the enterprise fund.  

 
 Basis of Accounting  

The accrual basis of accounting is used for all governmental entities that operate as business type 
entities. Accordingly, revenue is recognized when earned and capital assets and expenditures are 
recorded when received and incurred, respectively. Grants and contributions are recognized when 
all eligible requirements are met. 

 
Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, the School has 
elected to apply the provisions of all relevant pronouncements of Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB) that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.  
 
Tax Status 
The School was established under a charter granted by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ 
DESE and operates as a part of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and is therefore, generally 
exempt from income taxes under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code. 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purpose of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Cash Flows, the School 
considers all short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be 
cash equivalents. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the School held $7,266,895 and $5,134,903, 
respectively of cash equivalents. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – Continued 
 
Grants and Accounts Receivable 
Grants and accounts receivables are presented net of the allowance for doubtful accounts. 
Management’s periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on its past 
experience. These receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible. At June 30, 2020 
and 2019, no allowance for doubtful accounts had been recorded, as management considers all 
receivables to be fully collectible. 

 
Capital Assets 
Capital assets are recorded at cost or at fair market value at the date of donation. Capital assets 
purchased with a cost or value greater than $5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation is computed 
on a straight-line basis using estimated useful lives of 40 years for the building, 10-20 years 
for the building improvements, 3-5 years for equipment, computers and software, 4-10 years 
for furniture and fixtures, or the remaining life of the lease for equipment under capital lease.  
 
Construction in Progress 
Construction in progress includes costs associated with the renovation of the elementary 
school building. These costs are capitalized when incurred. 
 
Capital Leases 
A lease is a contract that conveys control of the right to use another entity’s nonfinancial asset as 
specified in the contract for a period of time. If a lease transfers ownership at the end of the lease 
the lease asset is capitalized and amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life. 
As such, a capital lease is reported within the net capital assets on the Statement of Net Position. 
 
Operating Revenue and Expenses 
Operating revenue and expenses generally result from providing educational and instructional 
services in connection with the School’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating 
revenues include Federal and Commonwealth of Massachusetts grants. Operating expenses 
include educational costs, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All other 
revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses. 
 
Bonds and Related Premiums and Debt Issuance Costs 
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the 
straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium. 
Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, 
debt issuance costs are expensed when incurred. 

 
Deferred Inflows and Outflows or Resources 
In addition to assets and liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inflows and outflows of resources. These separate financial 
statement elements represent an acquisition or disbursement of net position that applies to a 
future period(s) and so will not be recognized until that time. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – Continued 
 
Classification of Net Position 
 The following are the net position classifications:  

 Net Investment in Capital Assets – book value of capital assets net of any related 
debt 

 Restricted – amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of 
externally imposed restrictions by grantors and contributors.  

 Unrestricted – portion of funds to support operations 
 

The School applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which 
both restricted and unrestricted net position are available. 

 
Fair Value  
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application; the 
School’s investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The School categorizes 
the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on 
the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in 
active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; 
Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  
 
On-Behalf Payments  
The School recognizes its proportional share of pension revenue and expense, as reported by 
Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement System (the MTRS), as on-behalf payments in the Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 
 
Compensated Absences 
Employees of the School are entitled to paid vacations and paid holidays, depending on the 
job classification, length of service, and other factors. The School accrues for these 
compensated absences.  
 
Use of Estimates 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect 
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results 
could differ from those estimates.    
 
Reclassifications 
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current year 
presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the reported results of operations.  
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3. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period and thus, will not be recognized as 
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The School has only one item that 
qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred charge on refunding. A deferred charge on 
refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its 
reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the 
refunded or refunding debt. Deferred outflows of resources at both June 30, 2020 and 2019
consist of unamortized bond refunding charges of $3,876,364. Accumulated amortization at 
June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $403,788 and $242,273, respectively.
 
In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents 
revenue that applies to a future period and will not be recognized until that time. Unearned 
revenues arise when potential revenue does not meet both the “measureable” and “available” 
criteria for recognition in the current period. Unearned revenues also arise when resources are 
unearned by the School and received before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies 
are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when 
both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the School has a legal claim to the 
resources, the deferred inflow of resources is removed and revenue is recognized. 
 
Deferred inflows of resources at June 30, 2020 and 2019 consists of the following: 
 

2020 2019
Unearned private grants and contributions 460$             274,281$         
Unearned program fees 134,303        49,844             
Other unearned revenues 4,772            3,175               
     Total 139,535$      327,300$         

4. Deposits with Financial Institutions

The School maintained its cash accounts at four financial institutions. These balances at times 
may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured limit per financial 
institution. Management acknowledges the possibility of risk in this arrangement; however, the 
size and longevity of the depository institutions minimizes such risk.  
 

As required by GASB Statement No. 40, Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures at June 30, 
2020 and 2019 are as follows: 

2020 2019
Fully insured deposits 750,000$           752,680$        

Uncollateralized 13,148,109        8,580,106       

                Total 13,898,109$      9,332,786$     
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5. Fair Value Measurements 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application; the 
School’s investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The School categorizes 
the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on 
the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in 
active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 
3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are 
described as follows: 

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical 
assets or liabilities in active markets 

  
 Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 

  
o Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 

 
o Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; 

 
o Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;

 
o Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market 

data by correlation or other means.

 Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the 
fair value measurement.

The assets or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on 
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques 
used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2020 and 2019. The following 
are descriptions of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.  
 
Debt service reserve fund - Invested at least 99.5% of the fund’s total assets in cash, U.S. 
Government securities and/or repurchase agreements that are collateralized fully (i.e., 
collateralized cash or government securities). Certain issuers of U.S. Government securities are 
sponsored of chartered by Congress but their securities are neither issued nor guaranteed by the 
U.S. Treasury. Investing in compliance with industry-standard regulatory requirements for money 
market funds for the quality, maturity, liquidity and diversification of investments. The agreement 
suggests maintaining a stable $1 share price, liquidity, and income. Normally at least 80% of the 
fund’s assets are invested in the U.S. Government securities and repurchase agreements for those 
securities.  
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5. Fair Value Measurements – Continued 
 
The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the School’s assets at 
fair value as of June 30, 2020 and 2019: 
 

Fair Value Level 1 Inputs Level 2 Inputs Level 3 Inputs

June 30, 2020 Debt service reserve fund 3,624,269$    -$               3,624,269$    -$               

June 30, 2019 Debt service reserve fund 3,457,210$    -$               3,457,210$    -$               

Fair Value Measurements Using
Investments

 
6. Capital Assets 
 

Changes in capital assets of the School for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2019 Additions Deletions June 30, 2020

Capital assets not being depreciated
   Land 5,379,146$     -$               -$               5,379,146$    
   Construction in progress -                 29,281           -                 29,281           

Total capital assets not being depreciated 5,379,146       29,281           -                 5,408,427      

Capital assets being depreciated
   Building 35,862,039     208,883         -                 36,070,922    
   Building improvements 4,572,012       656,548         -                 5,228,560      
   Equipment 757,332          290,290         -                 1,047,622      
   Computers and software 1,704,477       918,989         -                 2,623,466      
   Classroom equipment 135,949          43,223           -                 179,172         
   Furniture and fixtures 496,124          76,245           -                 572,369         

Total capital assets being depreciated 43,527,933     2,194,178      -                 45,722,111    

Less accumulated depreciation
   Building 7,053,038       1,092,855      -                 8,145,893      
   Building improvements 1,473,786       264,554         -                 1,738,340      
   Equipment 152,086          156,455         -                 308,541         
   Computers and software 628,076          360,934         -                 989,010         
   Classroom equipment 39,018            31,863           -                 70,881           
   Furniture and fixtures 132,807          128,637         -                 261,444         

Total accumulated depreciation 9,478,811       2,035,298      -                 11,514,109    

Capital assets, net 39,428,268$   188,161$       -$               39,616,429$  
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6. Capital Assets – Continued 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2018 Additions Deletions June 30, 2019

Capital assets not being depreciated
   Land 5,217,596$     161,550$       -$               5,379,146$    

Capital assets being depreciated
   Building 35,578,885 324,498         41,344           35,862,039    
   Building improvements 4,438,363       133,649         -                 4,572,012      
   Equipment 298,054          521,295         62,017           757,332         
   Computers and software 1,692,332       143,865         131,720         1,704,477      
   Classroom equipment 29,624            106,325         -                 135,949         
   Furniture and fixtures 359,231          136,893         -                 496,124         

Total capital assets being depreciated 42,396,489     1,366,525      235,081         43,527,933    

Less accumulated depreciation
   Building 6,015,450       1,078,932      41,344           7,053,038      
   Building improvements 1,227,368       246,418         -                 1,473,786      
   Equipment 135,234          78,869           62,017           152,086         
   Computers and software 423,625          336,171         131,720         628,076         
   Classroom equipment 21,809            17,209           -                 39,018           
   Furniture and fixtures 18,774            114,033         -                 132,807         

Total accumulated depreciation 7,842,260       1,871,632      235,081         9,478,811      

Capital assets, net 39,771,825$   (343,557)$      -$                   39,428,268$  

7. Lease Commitments

Rental Revenue 
The School leased a portion of its property during fiscal year 2020 to various parties. Rental 
income for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $87,435 and $103,442, 
respectively.

Operating Leases 
The School leased office equipment under an operating lease that expires in July 2024. Rent 
expense on the leases was $46,387 and $41,121 for the years ending June 30, 2020 and 2019, 
respectively. 

  
The School leased vehicles under operating leases that expire at various times through
September 2023. Rent expense on the leases was $39,161 and $38,494 during the years ending 
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Future minimum operating lease commitments are as 
follows:  

 
Fiscal Year Amount

2021 85,755$        
2022 83,421$        
2023 76,844$        
2024 45,526$         



Foxborough Regional Charter School
Notes to Financial Statements – Continued

June 30, 2020 and 2019 

- 19 - 

7. Lease Commitments – Continued

Capital Leases
During fiscal year 2019, the School entered into a capital lease agreement under which the 
related equipment will become the property of the School when all terms of the lease agreement 
are met. The lease expires September 2025. The capital lease obligation at June 30, 2020 and 
2019 and the changes for the fiscal years then ended are as follows: 

 
Beginning Ending Amounts Due
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Within One Year

2020 95,320$           -$                 11,689$           83,631$           12,280$           

Beginning Ending Amounts Due
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Within One Year

2019 -$                 118,823$         16,503$           95,320$           11,689$            

Equipment and related accumulated amortization under the capital lease are as follows:

2020 2019
Equipment 111,823$      111,823$      

Less: accumulated amortization (27,955)         (11,981)         

Net value 83,868$        99,842$         

Amortization of leased equipment under capital assets is included with depreciation expense. 
 
The following represents future minimum capital lease payments as of June 30, 2020: 

Fiscal Year Amount
2021 16,503$     
2022 16,503       
2023 16,503       
2024 16,503       
2025 16,503       
Thereafter 20,000       

Total minimum lease payments 102,515     
Less amount representing interest (18,884)      

Present value of minimum lease payments 83,631$     
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8. Bonds Payable
 
Massachusetts Development Finance Agency (MDFA) Revenue Bonds, Foxborough Regional 
Charter School Issue, Series 2017B, were issued on December 27, 2017, in the original principal 
amount of $25,735,000 to advance refund $24,915,000 of outstanding 2010 Series bonds with an 
average interest rate of 6.5%. The net proceeds of $27,318,627 after payment of $272,406 in 
underwriting fees, plus insurance and other issuance costs totaling $319,337, were used to 
purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited into an irrevocable trust 
with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the 2010 Series bonds. 
As a result, the 2010 Series bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those 
bonds has been removed from the Statement of Net Position. The bond is payable in annual 
principal installments and interest payments made semi-annually. The bond bears interest at
3% through 2019, 4% through 2026, and 5% through 2042. The bond agreement contains 
provisions that upon the occurrence and continuance of any event of default, as defined in the 
note agreement, the principal amount of the note together with accrued interest may be declared 
due and payable immediately. The School is required to maintain a historical debt service 
coverage ratio of at least 1.10 measured for each fiscal year and maintain an unrestricted cash 
balance as of the end of each fiscal year of at least 5% of its operating expenses for the prior fiscal 
year. The bonds also require a loan to value ratio of no greater than 85% through and including 
June 30, 2019, and then no greater than 83% commencing July 1, 2019. The School was in 
compliance with these covenants at June 30, 2020 and 2019. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the 
outstanding loan balance was $24,825,000 and $25,410,000, respectively. Interest costs totaled 
$1,222,450 and $1,240,000 for fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 
Accrued interest totaled $611,225 and $620,000 for fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, 
respectively.  

 
MDFA Revenue Bond, Foxborough Regional Charter School Issue, Series 2017, were issued on 
May 19, 2017, in the original principal amount of $10,000,000. The note is payable monthly with 
interest only payments due from June 19, 2017 through May 19, 2019, and principal and interest 
payments due monthly thereafter in the amount of $52,168. The note bears interest at 3.33% and 
matures on May 19, 2042. The note is collateralized by the land and building located at 131 
Central Street, Foxborough, Massachusetts. The note agreement contains provisions that upon 
the occurrence and continuance of any event of default, as defined in the note agreement, the 
principal amount of the note together with accrued interest may be declared due and payable 
immediately. The School is required to maintain a historical debt service coverage ratio of at least 
1.20 measured for each fiscal year and to maintain an unrestricted cash balance as of the end of 
each fiscal year of at least 5% of its operating expenses for the prior fiscal year. The bonds also 
require a loan to value ratio of no greater than 83%. The School was in compliance with these 
covenants at June 30, 2020 and 2019. At June 30, 2020 and 2019 the outstanding loan balance 
was $9,683,729 and $9,976,506, respectively. Interest costs totaled $333,244 and $337,625, 
respectively, for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.  
 
The Series 2017B bonds were issued at a premium. The premium is amortized on a straight-
line basis over the life of the loan and recorded as interest income in the statement of revenue, 
expenses and changes in net position. At  June 30, 2020 and 2019, the bond premium was 
$2,175,371 and accumulated amortization on the premium was $217,538 and $130,523, 
respectively. Interest income at June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $87,015 for both years then ended.
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8. Bonds Payable – Continued 

The loan balance and the related activity for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 is 
as follows: 

Balance Balance Amounts Due 
July 1, 2019 Additions Reductions June 30, 2020 Within One Year

Bonds payable 35,386,506$      -$                 877,777$      34,508,729$      903,730$            
Plus: Bond premium 2,044,848          -                   87,015          1,957,833          -                     

Bonds payable, net 37,431,354$      -$                 964,792$      36,466,562$      903,730$            

Balance Balance Amounts Due 
July 1, 2018 Additions Reductions June 30, 2019 Within One Year

Bonds payable 35,735,000$      -$                 348,494$      35,386,506$      877,778$            
Plus: Bond premium 2,131,863          -                   87,015          2,044,848          -                     

Bonds payable, net 37,866,863$      -$                 435,509$      37,431,354$      877,778$             

The following is the debt service payments on the School’s notes payable.  

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Total

2021 903,730$          1,520,742$    2,424,472$       
2022 939,145            1,485,327      2,424,472         
2023 979,917            1,448,355      2,428,272         
2024 1,020,263         1,403,759      2,424,022         
2025 1,067,554         1,355,468      2,423,022         

2026-2030 6,114,215         5,983,644      12,097,859       
2031-2035 7,662,681         4,408,429      12,071,109       
2036-2040 9,600,599         2,425,010      12,025,609       
2041-2043 6,220,625         300,860         6,521,125         

     Total 34,508,729$     20,331,594$  54,839,962$      

The School has a Debt Service Reserve Fund being held by the Trustee. Any earnings from the 
fund will be used to reduce future principal and interest payments.  

9. Retirement Plan

Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System  
The Commonwealth of Massachusetts provides for retirement benefits to the School’s eligible 
teachers through the Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement System (MTRS), a contributory 
retirement system administered by the Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement Board. MTRS is 
governed by Massachusetts General Laws (M.G.L.), Chapter 32, as well as regulations contained 
in the Code of Massachusetts Regulations (CMR).  Oversight is provided by a seven-member 
board. MTRS issues a publicly available annual report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information, which may be obtained by writing to Public Employee 
Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC), 5 Middlesex Avenue, Suite 304, Somerville, 
Massachusetts, 02145.
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9. Retirement Plan – Continued 
 
This retirement plan requires an employee contribution of five, seven, eight, or eleven percent 
(depending on the plan and the employment date) of the employee's compensation.  The School 
is not assessed under this plan.  This retirement system is a contributory defined benefit plan 
covering all the employees deemed eligible.  Members of the plan become vested after 10 years 
of creditable service.  A retirement allowance may be received upon reaching age 55 and upon 
attaining 20 years of service.  

The plan also provides for retirement at age 55 if the participant (1) has a record of 10 years of 
creditable service, (2) was first employed by the School after January 1, 1978, (3) voluntarily left 
School employment on or after that date, and (4) left an accumulated annuity deduction in the 
fund.   

MTRS retirement plan, under GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions, is required by statute to determine the net pension liability for all participants. The net 
pension liability for the retirement plan at the June 30, 2019 measurement date was determined 
by an actuarial valuation prepared as of January 1, 2019 and rolled forward to June 30, 2019.  At 
June 30, 2020 and 2019, the School’s allocation of MTRS’s net pension liability was $30,523,003 
and $24,217,933, respectively. 

10. On-Behalf Payments

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, 
the School is required to recognize its proportional share of pension revenue and expenses, as 
reported by MTRS, as on-behalf payments in their financial statements. For the years ended June 
30, 2020 and 2019, the School recognized $3,701,444 and $2,449,577 of on-behalf revenues and 
expenses, respectively.
 

11. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses at June 30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows: 
 

2020 2019

Payables to vendors 1,090,988$   792,620$         
Accrued salaries and benefits 1,485,531     1,346,466        
     Total 2,576,519$   2,139,086$      

12. Board Designated Net Position 

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Board of Trustees has designated $3,565,006 and 
$4,163,131, respectively, of unrestricted net position for future capital expenditures, 
respectively. They have also designated $124,423 and $85,762 for the self-insured dental 
program as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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13. Grants and Accounts Receivables  

Grants and accounts receivable for the School at June 30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

2020 2019

Federal and state grants 172,938$       359,600$       
Tuition 44,248           1,691,797      
Other receivables 9,311             33,487           

     Total 226,497$       2,084,884$    

14. Contingencies

Grant Funding 
The School is subject to an audit of its Commonwealth of Massachusetts and Federal funding 
and as such, if determined that funds are not expended in accordance with the grant agreements, 
the grantor agency has the right to recapture these funds. Therefore, final acceptance of costs 
incurred under these grants and contracts resides with the grantors. As of the date of these 
statements, the materiality of adjustments to final costs, if any, cannot be determined and 
management does not anticipate any adjustments. 

Cumulative Surplus Revenue 
Effective July 1, 2010 any cumulative surplus revenue generated by the School must comply 
with M.G.L. c. 71, §89 (as amended by Chapter 12 of the Acts of 2010 under §7 (hh)). In 
accordance with this legislation and subsequent DESE regulations, if the School’s cumulative 
surplus revenue, as defined, exceeds 20% of its operating budget and its budgeted capital costs 
for the succeeding fiscal year, the amount in excess of said 20% shall be returned by the School 
to the sending district or districts and the Commonwealth in proportion to their share of tuition 
paid during the fiscal year. Management does not anticipate any repayment for fiscal year 2020. 

Coronavirus
A novel strain of coronavirus surfaced in Wuhan, China, and has spread around the world, with 
resulting business and social disruption. The coronavirus was declared a Public Health 
Emergency of International Concern by the World Health Organization on January 30, 2020. 
The operations and business results of the School could be materially adversely affected. The 
extent to which the coronavirus (or any other disease or epidemic) may impact business activity
will depend on future developments. The future developments are highly uncertain and cannot 
be predicted, including new information which may emerge concerning the severity of the 
coronavirus and the actions required to contain the coronavirus or treat its impact, among 
others. 

15. Subsequent Events

The School has evaluated subsequent events through August XX, 2020, which is the date the 
financial statements were issued. There are no recognized subsequent events that provide 
additional evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of net position date, or non-
recognized subsequent events, or events that provide evidence about conditions that did not 
exist at the statement of net position date, which are necessary to disclose to keep the financial 
statements from being misleading.
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Federal Grantor Federal Pass-Through
          (Pass-Through Grantor) CFDA Entity Identifying Federal

Program Title or Cluster Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Education

Passed through the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education

    Special Education Cluster
Special Education - Grants to States (IDEA, Part B) 84.027 314,412$     

Special Education - Grants to States (IDEA, Part B) 2019 Carry Over 84.027 66,383         

Special Education - Preschool Grants (IDEA Preschool) 84.173 1,507           

Total Special Education Cluster 382,302       

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies (LEAs) 84.010 186,014       

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies (LEAs) 2019 Carry Over 84.010 9,567           

Supporting Effective Instruction State Grant 84.367 35,406         

English Language Acquisition Grants 84.365 11,485         

English Language Acquisition Grants 84.365 3,964           

Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants 84.424 11,973         

Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants 84.424 1,940           

Total U.S. Department of Education 642,651       

U.S. Department of Agriculture

Passed through the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education

   Child Nutrition Cluster
School Breakfast Program (SBP) 10.553 45,864         
National School Lunch Program 10.555 168,017       

Total Child Nutrition Cluster 213,881       

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 213,881       

Total expenditures of federal awards 856,532$     

DOENUT2020SL
DOENUT2020SL

309-314659-2020-0446

305-314656-2020-0446

305-237938-2019-0446

140-314657-2020-0446

180-209340-2019-0446

180-314658-2020-0446

240-209339-2019-0446

240-317584-2020-0446

262-317585-2020-0446

309-237941-2019-0446

See accompanying notes to schedule of federal expenditures



Foxborough Regional Charter School
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

June 30, 2020 
 

- 26 - 

  1. Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the 
federal awards activity of Foxborough Regional Charter School (the School), under programs of 
the Federal government for the year ended June 30, 2020. The information in the Schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the 
operations of the School, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes 
in net position or cash flows of the School. 

2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, 
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 

The School has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimus indirect cost rate allowed under 
the Uniform Guidance. 

3.  Subrecipients 
 

There were no pass through federal awards to subrecipients by the School during fiscal year 2020. 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND 
INTERNAL CONTROL IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH  
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS



Dedham Executive Center, 990 Washington Street, Suite 308A, Dedham, Massachusetts 02026 (617) 262-9898 Fax (617) 437-9937 

 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance 

And Other Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With 
Government Auditing Standards 

The Board of Trustees of
Foxborough Regional Charter School
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of 
Foxborough Regional Charter School, (the School) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and 
the statements of revenue, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which comprise the School’s financial statements and have issued our 
report thereon dated Open Date.   

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Open Date
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REPORT IN ACCORDANCE
WITH 

THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 



Dedham Executive Center, 990 Washington Street, Suite 308A, Dedham, Massachusetts 02026 (617) 262-9898 Fax (617) 437-9937 

Independent Auditors’ Report On Compliance For Each Major Program And On Internal 
Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 

The Board of Trustees of
Foxborough Regional Charter School

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Foxborough Regional Charter School’s (the School) compliance with the types 
of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct 
and material effect on the School’s major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2020. The 
School’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.   

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the School’s major federal program 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our 
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and 
the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the School’s compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the School’s 
compliance.

Opinion on the Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the School, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal 
program for the year ended June 30, 2020. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning 
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the School’s internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on its major 
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for its major federal program and to test and 
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control 
over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Open Date 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
QUESTIONED COSTS



Foxborough Regional Charter School
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
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Section I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 
 
Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified
 
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness (es) identified? No
Significant deficiency (ies) identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses?

 
None reported 

Noncompliance which is material to financial statements 
noted? No
 
Federal Awards
 
Internal control over major programs: 
 

Material weakness (es) identified? No 
Significant deficiency (ies) identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses?

 
None reported 

Type of auditor’s report issued Unmodified 

 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 

reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)? No 
 
Identification of major programs: 

         CFDA Number Name of Federal Programs and Clusters

Special Education Cluster 
              84.027 
              

Special Education - Grants to States 
(IDEA, Part B) 

84.173
 

Special Education - Preschool Grants 
(IDEA Preschool)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and 
type B programs:

$750,000 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No             



Foxborough Regional Charter School
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs – Continued  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
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Section II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

A. Deficiencies in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

 None 

B. Material Fraud and Noncompliance with Provisions of Laws and Regulations 

None 

C. Material Noncompliance with Provisions of Contracts and Grant Agreements 

None 

D. Material Abuse 
 
 None 
 

Section III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None 
 



Foxborough Regional Charter School
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
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There were no unresolved audit findings from prior year’s audit. 
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BOARD ACCEPTANCE LETTER 



- 38 - 
 

 
 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

We, the Board of Trustees of Foxborough Regional Charter School have voted to accept the 
representations of management and the expression of the opinions made by Daniel Dennis & 
Company LLP as embodied in the combined financial statements and independent auditors’ 
reports for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

We also certify that the representations made by management and the disclosures in the combined 
financial statements are accurate and have been correctly and completely disclosed as required by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and the Commonwealth 
of Massachusetts Charter School Audit Guide for the year ended June 30, 2020.  
 

__________________________ 
Board President or Treasurer  
Or Other Designated Person

__________________________ 
Date



August 24, 2020   Opportunity ID:  468579 

Foxborough Regional Charter School 
131 Central Street 
Foxborough, MA 02035 

 
 
Site Address: 
Elementary School 
Middle and High Schools 

Attention: Mr. Kevin Heayden 
Facilities Manager 

Project Name: Ultraviolet Lighting Probes Installation and Plasma Scrubbers Installation 

  
Dear Kevin: 

Arden is pleased to present you with a proposal to furnish and install fifteen (15) ultraviolet systems in the air handling 
units that serve the High School, Middle School, and Elementary School. In addition, we will install three (3) air purification 
scrubbers, one in each nurse s station in each school.  Our proposal offers you a turnkey installation consisting of all 
electrical, sheet metal, and materials necessary. Specifically, we will perform the following scope of work:     

New Equipment / Materials: 

  
Equipment  

 

 
Manufacturer 

 

 
Area Served 

 

 
Notes 

 
 

Airborne Duct System w/  
High Output Lamps 

 
Fresh-Aire UV 

 
High School (6 Units) &  
Middle School (5 Units) 

 
With Interlock Switch and 

Access Door 
 

 
Airborne Duct System  

 
Fresh-Aire UV 

 
High School (6 Units) &  
Middle School (5 Units) 

 
With Interlock Switch and 

Access Door 
 

 
Airborne Duct System  

 
Fresh-Aire UV 

 
High School (6 Units) &  
Middle School (5 Units) 

 
With Interlock Switch and 

Access Door 
 

 
Airborne Duct System  

 
Fresh-Aire UV 

 
High School (6 Units) &  
Middle School (5 Units) 

 
With Interlock Switch and 

Access Door 
 

 
Air Purification Scrubber 

 

 
Plasma Air 

International 
 

 
Typical Classroom 

 
Ductless, Ceiling -Mounted 

 

Arden Engineering Constructors, LLC 
505 Narragansett Park Drive 

Pawtucket, RI  02861 
Phone: (401) 727-3500 

Fax: (401) 727-3540 



Foxborough Regional Charter School 
Ultraviolet Lighting and Air Purification Scrubbers 

High School, Middle School, and Elementary School

Scope of Service 
Furnish and install fifteen (15) double lamp configuration, in-duct, single pass, high output germicidal ultraviolet 
lamps with viewport, one per packaged RTU, as listed above 

o Lamps will have an interlock door switch to prevent lights from operating when servicing 
o Lamps to be installed in the RTU ducts above the drop ceiling 
o Control panel will have a BACNet card for future tie-into the BMS system 

Furnish and install access doors in the duct to service lamps 
Run power wiring to each lamp 
Test and startup systems to ensure proper operation 
Place units back online  
Perform project management and trades coordination  
Pull electrical permit 
Furnish and install three (3) plasma air purification scrubbers, one in each nurse s room 

Total Price for the above work $149,102.00 

Notes/Clarifications/Exclusions: 
1. Proposal excludes State taxes  
2. Any service not listed is excluded 
3. Work is quoted as being performed during normal business hours  
4. Proposal includes freight for delivery 
5. See attached sheet, below, for additional Terms and Conditions 

Thank you for the opportunity to quote your mechanical and electrical service needs. I am available at (401)-727-3500 to 
address your questions. 

Sincerely, 

Joseph A. Hoey 
Account Manager 
Arden 



Foxborough Regional Charter School 
Ultraviolet Lighting and Air Purification Scrubbers 

High School, Middle School, and Elementary School

This proposal is valid 90 days from August 24, 2020.
This agreement is subject to the attached Terms and Conditions.

 
 

CUSTOMER ACCEPTANCE  Arden Engineering Constructors, LLC 
 

 
______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Authorized Representative Authorized Representative 

 

______________________________________ 
 
______________________________________ 

Title Title 
 

______________________________________ 
 
______________________________________ 

Acceptance Date Signature Date 
 



Foxborough Regional Charter School 
Ultraviolet Lighting and Air Purification Scrubbers 

High School, Middle School, and Elementary School

Arden Engineering Constructors General Provisions for Service Projects

Services provided under this agreement will be performed during normal working hours.

The guarantees and services provided under the scope of this agreement are conditioned upon Customer operating and maintaining 
systems/equipment. Customer will do so in according to industry-accepted practices and in consideration of our recommendations. 

Customer will provide and permit reasonable access to all covered equipment.  Arden Engineering Constructors will be allowed to start and stop 
equipment as necessary to perform its services and be permitted use of existing facilities and building services. 

In the unlikely event of failure to perform its obliga lity is limited to repair or replacement at it option, and such 
shall be  sole remedy.  Under no circumstances will Arden Engineering Constructors be responsible for loss of use, loss of profits, increased 
operating or maintenance expense, claims of Custo  tenants or clients, or any special, indirect or consequential damages. 

The agreement does not include responsibility for system design deficiencies, such as, but not limited to poor air distribution, water flow imbalances, etc.  
It does not include responsibility for system, equipment and component obsolescence, electrical failures, unserviceable equipment, and operating the 
system(s). 

Arden Engineering Constructors will not be liable for delays or failure to obligate due to fire, flood, strike, lockout, freezing, unavailability of material, riots, 
acts of God, or any cause beyond reasonable control. 

Arden Engineering Constructors is not responsible for the removal or disposal of any hazardous materials including but not limited to asbestos or 
medical waste or any cost associated with these materials unless otherwise noted in this Agreement. 

Arden Engineering Constructors shall not be required to furnish any items of equipment, labor, or make special tests recommended or required by 
insurance companies, Federal State Municipal or other authorities except as otherwise included in this Agreement. 

In the event either party must commence a legal action in order to enforce any rights under this contract, the successful party shall be entitled to all court 
costs and reasonab  as determined by the court for prosecuting and defending the claim, as the case may be. 

Arden Engineering Constructors shall not be liable for the operation of the equipment nor for injuries to persons or damage to property, except those 
directly due to the negligent acts or omissions of its employees and in no event shall it be liable for consequential or speculative damages.  It shall not be 
liable for expense incurred in removing, replacing or refinishing any part of the building structure necessary to the execution of this Agreement.  It shall 
not be held liable for any loss by reason of strikes or labor troubles affecting its employees who perform the service called for herein, delays in 
transportation, delays caused by priority or preference rating, or orders or regulations established by any government, authority, or by unusual delays in 
procuring supplies or for any other cause beyond its reasonable control. 

el or agent are authorized to perform the work included in the scope of this Agreement.   Arden 
Engineering Constructors may, at its option, cancel or waive its obligations under this Agreement should non-authorized individuals perform such work.  

This Agreement and all rights hereunder shall not be assignable unless approved by Arden Engineering Constructors. 

In the event of additional freight, labor, or material costs resulting from a Customer's request to avoid delays with respect to equipment warranties, or 
accelerated delivery of parts and supplies, the Customer agrees to pay these additional costs at Arden Engineering Constructors' currently established 
rates.

 scope of work shall not include the identification, detection, abatement, encapsulation or removal of asbestos or 
products or materials containing asbestos or similar hazardous substances.  In the event Arden Engineering Constructors encounters such material in 
performing its work, Arden Engineering Constructors will have the right to discontinue work and remove its employees until the hazard is corrected or its 
determined no hazard exists. 

This Agreement contains the entire Contract and the parties hereby agree that this Agreement has been agreed to and the entire Agreement is then 
accepted and approved by an authorized person for both parties, and no statement, remark, agreement or, understanding, oral or written, not contained 
herein, will be recognized or enforced. 

This agreement does not include the disposal of hazardous waste; any charges incurred for their proper disposal will be born by the customer as an 
extra to the contract price. 

The Customer acknowledges and agrees that any purchase order issued by Customer, in accordance with this Agreement, is intended only to establish 
payment authority for Cu  internal accounting purposes.  No purchase order shall be considered to be a counteroffer, amendment, modification, 
or other revision to the terms of this agreement.   

Arden Engineering warrants labor on all service installations for thirty days after installation or beneficial use of equipment or service. Warranty on all 
material provided and / or installed shall equal that as provided by the specific individual equipment manufacturer. 

Should the contract be canceled without due cause, the Customer shall pay Arden Engineering Constructors 25% of the total sum price in addition to 
any previous amount paid. 























 
 

 

 

 

Back 2 School Reopening Plan 

Fall 2020 
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Return to School Safely 

Foxborough Regional Charter School was required to submit a plan to the state by Friday, August 14, 2020,
which included the final proposal with details of reopening for the Fall of 2020. Because circumstances can 
change at any moment, the School has three documented plans in place and has chosen the best option for 
this moment in time. Our plans were completed by a taskforce that included administrators, teachers, 
administrative staff, our transportation vendor, and our cleaning company. We surveyed staff and families, 
numerous times throughout the process and included the feedback into our plans.  A tremendous amount of 
input and hard work representing all stakeholders, went into this process, to develop a plan that is feasible, 
thoughtful and purposeful. 
 
Guidance from the Commissioner for additional training time before the start of classes was released. The 
School will implement that new procedure and add days at the beginning of the school year for COVID safety 
protocol orientation and Remote Learning professional development activities. Two weeks of Orientation this 
year are scheduled to review COVID-related procedures and provide Remote Learning workshops to 
strengthen distance learning instruction. Additionally, the plan outlines a full remote start and phases in grade 
levels over a four-week period, starting in October, to allow the school to move forward in a slow and steady 
way and make adjustments as necessary in reaction to the changing data.  
 
Please know that our first priority is our community and all of our plans are focused on staff and student 
safety. Every decision made has been considered through an infectious disease lens and we have done our 
best to anticipate all unintended outcomes. As of August, 11, 2020, we have final approval from the Board of 
Trustees to start on September 14, 2020 with all students 100% Remote.  The Hybrid Model will be phased in 
starting Mid-October, as feasible by health trends at that time.  
 

First Day of School  September 14, 2020  100% Remote 
First Day of Hybrid   October 19, 2020  Reference Cohorts in Chart 
October 19, 2020 is the anticipated start date of our remote program. It will be decided based on public 
health data. 

**The school will use the information from the most recent Family Survey to assign families into cohorts in 
preparation for our introduction of the Hybrid Model in Mid-October.  

 
 
 
 



3 | P a g e  

Table of Contents 

Phase 1      4 

Phase 2      6 

Cohort Structure    7 

Phase In Schedule    8 

Attendance Policy    8 

Social Distancing    9 

Health Precautions    11 

Rapid Response Testing    19 

Hygiene Protocols    21 

Instruction and Technology   22 

Staffing and Operations    26 

Families First Coronavirus Response Act  28 

Cleaning and Disinfecting   30 

Personal Protective Equipment   30 

Positive Case Procedure    31 

Programming     33 

Communication     34 

Interscholastic Athletics    35 

State Metrics     37 

 



4 | P a g e  

Phase 1  September 14, 2020 - October 16, 2020  
 

1. 100% Remote Learning for all students K-12.

2. In-person learning may be offered to students with the highest needs, according to their Individual 

Education Plan.  

Special Education students who receive most of their instruction in a substantially separate classroom 
will have the option to return to in-person instruction Monday, Tuesday, Thursday, and Friday from 
8:00am-2:00pm using a phased in approach. Families with children currently in the program will be 
notified individually.  

Sub Separate Timeline: 

9/14   Mrs. Howell - Rising Stars students return to in-person instruction 

9/21  - TLC 1 and TLC 2 (ES programs) return along with 

Rising Stars for in-person instruction 

9/28  Mrs. Davidson and Ms. Maher - MS Academic Support classrooms (2) return along 

with ES classrooms 

10/5   Ms. Ferraz  High School class returns along with the MS and ES classrooms 

 

3. ELE Students The School will provide an in-person service delivery model rather than an in-person 
instructional model.  ELs who qualify as high needs, through screening or ACCESS results, will be 
offered 2 hours, twice a week, of ESL services with ESL teachers.  Students will work on academic 
language and speaking skills during the in-person services.    Parents will be responsible for providing
transportation for this small window of services - similar to a clinic model if they want to participate in 
this opportunity.   

4. Teachers will teach from their classrooms so they will have access to synchronous technology and 

other resources.  

6. Each week, Wednesday will be set aside for professional development day for staff to strengthen 

remote learning lessons, tools, assignments and activities. Teachers will post projects and other 

assignments for student engagement on those days, in advance.  There will be no staff in the building 

and the Offices will be closed. 

7. The School will assess current public health data daily to inform decisions to move forward and make 

recommendations to the Board of Trustees.   

8. Remote instruction may include synchronous lessons that will be recorded for review and posted for 

students who may have been absent.  
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7. Should the circumstances be deemed safe at that time, the Hybrid Model Phase In will begin on 

October 19 and follow the original plan. The only difference will be the implementation dates.  

8. Teachers will participate in professional development from August 27, 2020  September 11, 2020. 

During this time, all safety precautions, COVID related training and health and wellness procedures 

will be addressed. Week 2 of orientation will also include:  

a. Testing of technology and bandwidth to prepare for high volume use.  

b. Distribution of Streams, grade level text books and materials to families.  

c. Workshops on Google Classroom and remote learning tools and lessons.  

*  Staff may bring school aged children to their classroom during the two orientation weeks and 100% 

remote learning time, if necessary, with the expectation that they remain in the classroom, wear face 

coverings, and have assignments and activities to keep them focused.  

9. All teachers will teach from their classrooms and attend work in person each day. 

a. Monday/ Tuesday/ Thursday / Friday Hours will remain 7:30am-3:30pm with the end of day,

until 3:30pm, set up as office hours for remote students.  
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Phase 2- Anticipated Start Date October 19, 2020  Actual Start Date will 
Depend on Public Health Data Trends 

1. The plan is for students to participate in on campus learning starting in Mid-October.  

2. A choice of full time remote is available for students and families. Families are required to sign up in 

advance, if they choose to continue 100% Remote.  

3. Students selecting Hybrid, and deciding to remain Remote, should contact the building Principal and 

teachers to make this switch. 

4. Students selecting Remote, and deciding they would like Hybrid, should contact the building principal 

and the teachers. A timeline will be set up to ensure a smooth transition for students, teachers and 

families. 

5. The School will implement a Hybrid model, two days each week for all students selecting in person 

instruction.  

6. Classes will be offered on campus on a rotating schedule with 2 cohorts of remaining students.   

a. Cohort A will attend school on Monday and Tuesday and work remotely on Wednesday, 

Thursday, Friday.  

b. Cohort B will attend school on Thursday and Friday and work remotely Monday, Tuesday, 

Wednesday.  

c. Wednesday will be a staff development day  no staff or student on-campus attendance AND 

a deep cleaning day before the second cohort enters the building. Remote lessons, activities 

and assignments must be recorded, uploaded and/or posted in advance so students have 

instruction provided.  

i. Estimated class size is 10-12 students per classroom in elementary school and 

middle school under this model with 6 foot physical distancing. High School will 

make every effort to keep in person classes as small as possible and in compliance 

with the 6 foot social distance guidance. 

ii. Staff development each Wednesday will center around building remote learning 

tools, lessons and programming to strengthen the current remote program and to 

prepare for a possible need for intermittent shut down due to outbreaks.  Teachers 

will offer office hours online, but will not provide direct whole class instruction.
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7. Phased in schedule by week and by grade to allow for:  

a. More structured re-entry for students and parents to ensure health and safety and to give the 

school time to revisit, review and revise plans based on actual student feasibility once seen in 

action.  

b. More time for teachers and administrators to tweak procedures with fewer students and 

families impacted.  

Cohort Structure:  

Cohort A    Attend on campus Monday / Tuesday  

Cleaning/ No student attendance/ Staff development and planning periods as
Sanitizing Wednesday well as Deep Cleaning  

Cohort B    Attend on campus Thursday / Friday  

 On days when students are not on campus, they will be required to participate in remote learning 

videos, activities, projects, and other assignments.  

 Cohorts will be assigned in late August and will be communicated out to families along with class 

placement and schedule announcements in early September. 

 
 Families have chosen Remote or Hybrid through the end of Term 1.  

Phased in Schedule:  

One grade level in each of the schools will be phased in at a time.  

Procedures will be tweaked as necessary and an additional grade level will be phased in to each of the 

schools in each subsequent week.  

Grades K and 1 will be the only exception and will both begin on campus instruction November 9, 

2020.  

A Kindergarten Orientation will be held for each cohort in early October on Wednesdays, when no 

other students are in the building. 
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Fall 2020 Return to School Phase In  
On Campus / Remote Learning Schedule  

Week   Week Of:    ES Grade 
Attendance

MS Grade 
Attendance

HS Grade 
Attendance

*Remote Until 
Phased In

Staff ONLY
  

August 27  
September 11  

Staff Orientation and Safety Training  
Topics to include: COVID related safety 
procedures and remote learning tools, 
strategies and best practices. During Week 2, 
all technology and streaming capacity will be 
tested to ensure bandwidth meets streaming 
needs.  

XX  XX  XX  XX 

  
Weeks 1-5  
  

September 14  
October 16  

  
All Students 100% Remote  
Students participating in a substantially 
separate classroom will be phased in during 
this time.  

  
All  

  
All  

  
All  

 
All 

Week 1 October 19  Cohort A Attends on campus instruction on 
Monday/ Tuesday.  
  
Cohort B Attends on campus instruction on 
Thursday/Friday.  
  
Cohorts assignments will be made by 
September.   

Grade 4 Only  Grade 5 Only  Grade 9 Only  Kindergarten 
Grade 1  
Grade 2  
Grade 3  
Grade 6  
Grade 7  
Grade 8  
Grade 10  
Grade 11  
Grade 12  

Week 2 October 26  Cohort A attends Monday/Tuesday  
Cohort B attends Thursday/ Friday  
  
  

Grade 4  
Grade 3  

Grade 5  
Grade 6  

Grade 9  
Grade 10  

Kindergarten 
Grade1  
Grade 2  
Grade 7  
Grade 8  
Grade 11  
Grade 12  

Week 3 November 2  Cohort A attends Monday/Tuesday  
Cohort B attends Thursday/ Friday  
   

Grade 4  
Grade 3  
Grade 2  

Grade 5  
Grade 6  
Grade 7  

Grade 9  
Grade 10  
Grade 11  

Kindergarten 
Grade 1  
Grade 8  
Grade 12  

Week 4 November 9  Cohort A attends Monday/Tuesday  
Cohort B attends Thursday/ Friday  

Grade 4  
Grade 3  
Grade 2  
Grade 1  

Kindergarten  

Grade 5  
Grade 6  
Grade 7  
Grade 8  

Grade 9  
Grade 10  
Grade 11  
Grade 12  

Remote Learners 
ONLY  

*TBD:  Kindergarten Cohort A and  B Orientation  

Attendance Policy 

Attendance is expected under the remote model and will be taken each class period. If a student is unable to 
attend the scheduled remote synchronous learning session, submitted online classwork assignments will also 
mark the student as present, but must be submitted the same day for attendance to count. If a student does 
not attend the synchronous session, or submit work, families will be contacted to determine if the student is 
absent. As during a typical school year, families are asked to contact their ch
from learning on any given day.  
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Social Distancing 
Limiting face-to-face contact with others is the best way to reduce the spread of coronavirus disease 2019 
(COVID-19). 
other people outside of your home. To practice social or physical distancing stay at least 6 feet (about 2 

 Keeping space between you and others is one of the best tools we have to 
avoid being exposed to this virus and slowing its spread. Limit close contact with others outside your 
household in indoor and outdoor spaces. Since people can spread the virus before they know they are sick, it 
is important to stay away from others when possible, even if you or they have no symptoms. Social 
distancing is especially important for people who are at higher risk for severe illness from COVID-19. 

 

Maintain social/physical distancing practices in the School.  

Do not congregate in common spaces such as hallways and break rooms or visit with friends. 

Instead of talking face to face, phone calls are strongly encouraged.  

Clean personal work areas daily. 

phones, desks, offices or other work tools and equipment, 

when possible. 

Stay at least 6 feet from students and co-  

 

The School will monitor entries and exits and limit occupancy at all times to ensure:  

Capacity remains at d occupancy as documented in the 

occupancy permit on record with the Foxborough building department. 

All occupancy counts and calculations include students, staff, and other workers. 

Separation of 6 feet or more between individuals will be adhered to, where possible.  

Common spaces and high density areas where students and staff are likely to congregate will be 

closed or reconfigured (e.g., staff rooms, cafeteria; lobbies and workstations for students and staff to 

allow social distancing. 

Physical partitions will separate workstations that cannot be separated by 6 feet or more.  

Visual social distancing markers will be installed to encourage students and staff to remain 6 feet 

apart (e.g., lines at the front offices, lines to use the restroom) and physical barriers for flow of 

hallway direction. 

All rooms and hallways will be marked to indicate 6 feet separation and direction of flow. 
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Mask Breaks 

 Teachers will determine when mask breaks are appropriate. 

 Mask breaks should be encouraged at natural breaks during the school day. Meals, snacks and at 

teacher discretion.  

 Students will maintain 6 foot distance and will participate in breaks up to 15 minutes. 

 Masks must be worn in all common areas including: buses, classrooms, hallways, bathrooms, 

recess or other common areas. students and staff should be safely 6 feet or more distancing if a mask 

is removed.  

Additional Safety Precautions in Place 

Lunch and break times for students and staff will be staggered, and meals will be delivered and 

portable. Trash barrels will be placed in each room and should be set in the hallway daily for removal, 

immediately following lunch. 

In classrooms, students will be no less than 6 feet apart.  

Face coverings are required for all staff, students, and visitors as necessary. Individuals with medical 

conditions or disabilities who are concerned about wearing a face covering should contact the Nurse 

Leader. Neck Gaiters, bandanas, and masks with valves will not be acceptable as research is showing 

them to be ineffective. 

Directional pathways have been established to manage flow for foot traffic, to minimize contact (e.g., 

one-way entrance and exit to rooms, one-way pathways). Visible signage is posted, regarding these 

policies. 
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Health Precautions for Staff and Students
People with COVID-19 have had a wide range of symptoms reported, ranging from mild symptoms to severe 
illness. Symptoms may appear 2-14 days after exposure to the virus. People with these symptoms may have 
COVID-19: 

 Fever or chills 
 Cough 
 Shortness of breath or difficulty breathing 
 Fatigue 
 Muscle or body aches 
 Headache 
 New loss of taste or smell 
 Sore throat 
 Congestion or runny nose 
 Nausea or vomiting 
 Diarrhea 
 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=7zzfdYShvQU 

   

Contract Tracing is an important component to decreasing the spread of COVID 19. Visitors who enter the 
building will be required to sign in with their name and phone number to facilitate contact tracing if needed.

   

Foxborough Board of Health department requires all students, staff and visitors entering the building 
complete a COVID 19 screening form daily.  

The Screening form can be located at  https://forms.gle/kYSXfo8jGybSZFSg6  or accessed  by scanning the QR 
Code below. 

 

 
Teachers will post as a daily assignment to help students remember and reminders will be sent to parents via 
email.
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Cloth face coverings are required as a simple barrier to help prevent respiratory droplets from 

traveling into the air and onto other people when the person wearing the cloth face covering coughs, 

sneezes, talks, or raises their voice.  

Face Covering must be worn correctly. 

Students and Staff should wash hands before putting on face coverings. 

Masks should be placed over nose and mouth and secured under the chin. 

Masks should fit snugly against the sides of the face. 

You should be able to breathe easily. 

Hold a mask up to a light and make sure you see thru it.  (*If light shows thru the mask, you are 

not getting the proper protection.)  

Masks or cloth face coverings should be worn at all times during the school day when a 6 foot physical 

distance cannot be maintained and at all times, while riding the school bus. 

Students in grades K and 1 will be encouraged to wear face masks or cloth coverings at all times.  

 

Take off your cloth face covering carefully 

Untie the strings behind your head or stretch the ear loops 

Handle only by the ear loops or ties 

Fold outside corners together 

Place covering in the washing machine  

Be careful not to touch your eyes, nose, and mouth when removing and wash hands immediately after 

removing. 

Keep your hands clean  

Wash hands frequently or use hand sanitizer. 

Touch the least amount of common spaces as possible where safety allows. Use paper towels or 

tissues as a barrier when you must touch common areas and then throw them away properly. 

When using common items, sanitize hands before touching any equipment (ex. copier machine) and 

again afterwards.  

Avoid touching face. 
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Sneezing or cough into your elbow or cover your mouth and nose with a tissue. Dispose of the tissue 

properly and wash your hands.  

 

Wet your hands with clean, running water (warm or cold), turn off the tap, and apply soap. 

Lather your hands by rubbing them together with the soap. Lather the backs of your hands, between 

your fingers, and under your nails. 

Scrub 

beginning to end twice. 

Rinse your hands well under clean, running water. 

Dry your hands using a clean towel or air dry them. 

Students and Staff should wash hands 

Upon arrival and upon going home 

Before entering vehicles used for transportation 

After coming in from program space outside 

Before and after preparing food 

Before and after you eat 

After assisting students with handwashing 

After using any shared equipment like keyboards or manipulatives 

After touching or cleaning surfaces that may be contaminated 

Before and after treating a cut or wound 

After sneezing, coughing, or nose blowing 

After toileting or diapering 

After contact with a facemask or cloth face covering 

Before and after change of gloves 

How and When to Use Hand Sanitizer 

Apply the gel product to the palm of one hand (read the label to learn the correct amount). 

Rub your hands together. 
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Rub the gel over all the surfaces of your hands and fingers until your hands are dry. This should take 

around 20 seconds. 

Washing hands with soap and water is the best way to get rid of germs in most situations. If soap and 

water are not readily available, you can use an alcohol-based hand sanitizer that contains at least 60% 

alcohol. You can tell if the sanitizer contains at least 60% alcohol by looking at the product label. 

Sanitizers can quickly reduce the number of germs on hands in many situations.  

Sanitizers do not get rid of all types of germs. 

Hand sanitizers may not be as effective when hands are visibly dirty or greasy. 

 

Call the nurse prior to sending any student to the office. Students will not be allowed to wait outside 

the office or the classroom. 

o HS ext: 360 

o MS ext: 362 

o ES ext: 361 

If nurse is not able to answer the phone, call the front office they will radio the nurse to contact your 

room when the nurse is available. 

Please keep in mind, if a suspected COVID 19 case is in the medical waiting room students may be 

asked to wait in the classroom until the office is deemed safe.   

While waiting for nurse to return call:  

o Continue to maintain social/ physical distancing 

o Keep masks on at all times.  
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Protocols for Responding to COVID -19 
Scenarios  
Protocols for responding to COVID-19 scenarios in school, on the bus, or in community settings. These 
refinements and updates are a result of questions that have come from the practical implementation of both 
DESE and Department of Public Health (DPH) guidance, as well as from evolving medical and scientific findings 
related to COVID-19. Please note that DESE and DPH intend to collaborate throughout the school year to 
conduct periodic reviews of guidance for schools and issue additional updates as necessary. DESE will also 
update its relevant guidance documents so that they include the clarified guidelines described below.  

Definition of a close contact  

If a student or staff member tests positive for COVID-19, their close contacts will be defined as only 
those who have been within 6 feet of distance of the individual for at least fifteen minutes, while the 
person was infectious. The infectious period begins 2 days prior to symptom onset. If someone is 
asymptomatic, the infectious period is considered to begin 2 days prior to the collection of their 
positive test. While previous guidance stated that all students in an elementary classroom would be 
defined as close contacts, this new guidance provides a narrower definition of a close contact which 
mirrors DPH guidance.  

Policy of when a close contact may return to school  

All close contacts should be tested but must self-quarantine for 14 days after the last exposure to the 
person who tested positive, regardless of test result. After further consultation with the medical 
community, we are updating this guidance as the virus can cause illness from 2-14 days after exposure 
and even asymptomatic individuals can transmit the virus. Going forward, even if an individual 
identified as a close contact receives a negative test result, they must continue to self-quarantine for 
the full 14 days as the virus may take up to 14 days to cause illness.  

Policy of when a student/staff person may return to school after COVID-19 symptoms  

 If a student or staff member has COVID-19-like symptoms, they may return to school after they have 
tested negative for COVID-19, have improvement in symptoms, and have been without fever for at 
least 24 hours without the use of fever reducing medications. If a provider makes an alternative 
diagnosis for the COVID-19-like symptoms, the individual may return to school based on the 
recommendations for that alternative diagnosis (e.g., influenza or strep pharyngitis).  

 If a student or staff member presents COVID-19-like symptoms and chooses not to be tested, they 
may return to school 10 days from start of symptoms, as long as their symptoms have improved and 
they have been without fever for at least 24 hours prior to their return to school without the use of 
fever reducing medication.  
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Definition of COVID-19 related fever  

Over the summer, the threshold for a COVID-19 related fever by the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention (CDC) has bee
going forward, a fever as a COVID-  

Students wearing masks  

 Masks or face coverings are among the most critical components to reduce the transmission of COVID-
19. Students in grade 2 and above are required to wear a mask/face covering that covers their nose 
and mouth at all times, with the exception of meals and mask breaks. Whenever possible, students in 
pre-kindergarten through grade 1 who can safely and appropriately wear, remove, and handle masks 
should do so. Even if students are spaced six feet apart in classrooms, the use of masks is still required 
unless students are eating lunch or taking a mask break.  

Physical distancing guidelines  

 Physical distancing is a critical tool in preventing the spread of COVID-19. The CDC recommends 6 feet 
of distance between individuals. The World Health Organization3 and the American Academy of 
Pediatrics4 recommend a minimum of 3 feet of distance. DESE recommends that districts aim for 6 
feet of distance where feasible. When 6 feet is not feasible, 3 feet is an acceptable minimum as long 
as staff and students wear masks covering the nose and mouth at all times. If the 3 feet minimum is 
applied on the bus, all staff and students regardless of age must wear masks at all times. Please note 
that decisions to apply a 3-feet minimum will likely increase the number of close contacts associated 
with the occurrence of a case.  

Immunizations required in all models of learning  

 Previously released guidance emphasized the importance of maintaining school immunization 
requirements and obtaining the flu vaccine as students return to in-person instruction. 

 This is equally important for students who are enrolled in remote or hybrid schooling models. 
Immunization requirements must be met in all models of learning.  

 Staff is also required to receive a flu vaccination by December 31, 2020. 

Medical waiting room  

 As noted in previous DESE guidance, schools must establish a separate room for students exhibiting 
COVID-19 symptoms or who may have learned about a positive test result while at school, while 
waiting to be picked up by a family member. This space must be supervised. If feasible given space 
and staffing constraints, schools are encouraged to provide individual students with their own waiting 
room. If more than one student is in the same waiting room at a time, each student must be at least 6 
feet apart (and should be spaced as far apart as possible) and wearing a surgical mask (non-N95 and 
non-cloth) while in the medical waiting room. If a student does not already have a surgical mask, the 
school should provide one. Schools must also be equipped with the PPE for the staff involved with 
supervision of the waiting room.  
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Supporting the safe application of hand sanitizer  

 Handwashing with soap and water for at least 20 seconds is the best practice. However, hand sanitizer 
containing at least 60% alcohol should be substituted when handwashing is not available. Hand 
sanitizer stations should be set up where school staff are typically present, such as common areas, 
hallways, and classrooms. While the application of hand sanitizer may be necessary throughout the 
school day (especially if hand washing is less accessible) and does not require specialized instructions 
for use, districts and schools should avoid placing sanitizer stations in areas that are not typically 
supervised through the regular presence of staff.  

Supporting the safety of our students, teachers, staff, and community is our most important mutual priority. 
We will continue to work in collaboration to update and refine our procedures as the science evolves and the 
State offers new guidance. Thank you for your efforts on behalf of our students and to provide a safe 
environment for everyone in our schools. 
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Understanding Symptoms
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COVID19 Protocol for Exposure 
to COVID Positive individual 

 

 

Rapid Response Testing 

Local school officials, after consultation with public health authorities, will be able to request a state 
sponsored mobile testing unit to test a group of students and/or staff when a potential cluster of COVID-19 
cases has been identified and transmission occurred within the school.  

The purpose of the mobile rapid response unit is to provide testing of asymptomatic individuals who 
are not known to be a close contact, when there is evidence that COVID-19 transmission may have 
occurred within a classroom or school in the past 14 days 
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School administrators must contact their local board of health before reaching out to the Department 
of Public Health. The mobile response unit can be requested by a school administrator or the local 
board of health and may be deployed by the COVID-19 COVID Response Center after consultation with 
a DPH epidemiologist 

Any youth under the age of 18 must have the written approval of their parent or legally authorized 
representative in order to be tested 

DESE and DPH will put out detailed guidance in the coming weeks on how and when testing can be 
requested, as well as testing and resulting protocols 

Students who develop COVID-19 symptoms or who are close contacts should be tested by their 
healthcare provider or at a COVID-19 testing site. Testing for symptomatic individuals and close 
contacts is covered by insurance with no out-of-pocket costs. If an individual does not have insurance 
testing, it is the responsibility of the health care provider to bill through the federal portal.  
 
School administrators should consult with public health authorities to determine if a request for mobile 
testing should be made. The mobile response team would be deployed if the following minimal 
conditions applied:   
 

o staff if two or more students/staff within the classroom group develop COVID-19 within 14 
days and transmission/exposure occurred in the classroom 

o if more than 3% of the cohort/grade (at least 3 individuals) develop COVID-19 within 14 days 
and transmission/exposure occurred in the school 

o if more than 3% of the school develops COVID-19 within 14 days and there is evidence of 
transmission within the school 

o if 3 or more staff within the same school develop COVID-19 within 14 days and there is 
evidence of transmission among the staff  

o if two or more students on the bus develop COVID-19 within 14 days 

Stop the Spread  

The Stop the Spread (STS) initiative was launched on July 10th. STS is a data-driven initiative that currently 
provides free testing in 20 communities, through September 12th, that have high rates of COVID-19. The Stop 
the Spread initiative will be extended through Sept. 30 in select municipalities with the highest rates of COVID 
19.   
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Hygiene Protocols 
Cleaning and disinfecting of high traffic areas as well as frequent hand washing are recommended strongly by 
the CDC. The school will: 

Ensure access to handwashing facilities on site, including soap and running water, and allow sufficient 

break time for students, staff and teachers to wash hands frequently; alcohol-based hand sanitizers 

with at least 60% alcohol may be used as an alternative. 

Provide regular sanitation of high touch areas, such as workstations, equipment, screens, doorknobs, 

and restrooms throughout the school. 

Staff and teachers at each school building location will be provided with adequate cleaning products 

(e.g., sanitizer, disinfecting wipes) 

Visible signage will be placed throughout the school to remind students and staff of hygiene and 

safety protocols. 

Alcohol-based hand sanitizers with at least 60% alcohol have been made available at entrances and 

throughout floor areas for students, staff and visitors. 

Sharing equipment and supplies between students, staff and visitors will be avoided. 

Shared equipment will be disinfected before use by another student or staff member. 

Air Quality: 

FRCS has reviewed its Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC) systems and identified 
methods to maximize introduction of outside fresh air, and improve air filtration, in accordance with 
DESE recommendations and guidance.  HVAC systems in all three FRCS facilities have been upgraded 
in recent years to facilitate these adjustments. 
 
HVAC system settings will be adjusted to eliminate or minimize the use of recycled air to the extent 
possible.  Upgraded, recommended MERV-13 air filters have been introduced in all classrooms to 
more effectively treat incoming fresh and returned air.  Filters will be changed at least quarterly to 
further improve air quality.   
 
As outside air temperatures begin to drop, further changes to HVAC settings will be necessary to 
balance the need for outdoor, fresh air, with sustainable indoor temperatures that are conducive to a 
learning environment.  This calibration will also be necessary to prevent significant damage to the 
HVAC systems from introduction of colder, fresh air.  FRCS has engaged an HVAC company to review 
all settings to promote optimal fresh air ventilation and occupant safety with potential future 
installations to promote air quality during colder months.  
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FRCS campus uses modern HVAC technology, including a building automation system (BAS) that 
facilitates control of HVAC settings and maximization of fresh air intake.  Additional controls are being 
installed in certain areas of campus to be added to the BAS in order to remotely control dampers in 
order to bring in maximum outside air.  

Changes have been made to the HVAC units to switch air circulation patterns and pull 100% fresh 
outside air into the building, recycling the inside air back outside of the building. The School has 
upgraded all filters to Merv-13 which are thought to better capture droplets in the air and better 
protect against potential COVID infection.  

Outdoor Access: 

Tents have been installed at each building to be used for instruction, mask breaks, etc. A tent 

Schedule will be available through the Administrative Assistant at each building office. 
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Instruction and Technology
The remote learning program will be far more robust than we experienced this spring. Attendance will be 
mandatory, assignments will be graded, projects, activities and classwork will factor into final grades. Each 
Wednesday, teachers will participate in professional development to share best practices and continue to 
strengthen delivery of instruction. 

The School will strive to provide every student effective and impactful Remote learning and Distance 

Learning during the Hybrid Phase. 

Chromebooks have been ordered and will be delivered to the school in mid-October. They will be 

distributed to Middle and High School students at that time.  

Streams will be distributed in early September who all students who need a device in order to access 

the curriculum remotely. 

Headphones will be available on a limited basis to families who need support with setting up a quiet 

learning environment for their child. 

Lessons will be recorded and posted online. 

Synchronous Learning will be available this fall to stream teacher led lessons in real time. 

Teachers will hold scheduled office hours to support children and be available via email for families.

Our Technology Specialist will hold virtual instructional sessions for parents to help them learn how to 

better navigate the Google Classroom platform and support their children. 

Tech Support: 

The School has set up a designated Help Line for parents who need assistance with Google Classroom or have 

other Tech issues. The email is FamilytechSupport@foxboroughrcs.org. 

Device and School Material Distribution: 

September 8     

Elementary School Device and Material Pick up  Please watch for the sign up genius in future emails 

9:00 a.m.-12:00 p.m.  Grades K through 2 will pick up in the Elementary School Parking lot. 

Each grade will be assigned one lane. 

1:00 p.m.-3:00 p.m.  Grades 3 and 4 will pick up in the Elementary School Parking lot. Each 

grade will be assigned to one lane. 
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September 9 

Middle School Device and Material Pick up  Please watch for the sign up genius in future emails 

9:00 a.m.-11:00 a.m.  Grades 5 and 6 will pick up in the Bus Lane Area near Door E. Each 

grade will be assigned one lane. 

12:00 p.m.-2:00 p.m.- Grades 7 and 8 will pick up in the Bus Lane Area near Door E. Each grade 

will be assigned one lane. 

September 10 

High School Device and Material Pick up- Please watch for the sign up genius in future emails 

9:00 a.m.-11:00 a.m.  Grades 9 and 10 will pick up in the Bus Lane Area near Door E. Each 

grade will be assigned one lane. 

12:00 p.m.-2:00 p.m.- Grades 11 and 12 will pick up in the Bus Lane Area near Door E. Each 

grade will be assigned one lane. 

September 11          

 

9:00 a.m.-10:00 a.m.  All grades may pick up at the Elementary School               

Special Education/ Substantially Separate Program: 

The BCBA will provide parent training on how to support, structure and incentivize remote learning to help 
students be more successful.  Teachers will develop a remote learning schedule that provides time for teacher 
led instruction and independent/home supported practice. 

 

 

As our school community navigates re-opening in the midst of the COVID-19 pandemic; FRCS is dedicated to 

providing engaging and effective remote learning opportunities for our students.  In order to comply with 

federal, state and local guidance to minimize risk for COVID-19 transmission, FRCS plans to use remote 

technology, including live-streaming technology through remote platforms (e.g. Google Meet and Zoom), so a 

designated group of students in a class at home can access the live in-class experience, pre-recorded videos 

and other materials at home. We believe this will offer the most engaging, real-time experiences for students 

while ensuring students can be safely distanced in the classroom. Prior to engaging in these remote 

opportunities, FRCS seeks to clarify expectations around appropriate use of virtual technologies for 

educational opportunities.  
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1. FRCS may use live-streaming technology in order to allow students at home to access real-time in 

classroom experiences. The live-streamed videos may be recorded by FRCS and put in Google Docs for 

future viewing by students who were absent or those seeking to review a lesson.   Such recordings will 

be made of the teacher and his/her visual aids only.  No students will be recorded.  Only students with 

the appropriate access code will be able to view the recorded videos on Google Docs. No other 

recordings shall be maintained or stored by FRCS. Please be advised that FRCS administration may 

continue to use intermittent in-person video recordings of in-person classrooms exclusively for 

teacher coaching and professional development purposes.  

2. FRCS strictly prohibits screenshots, pictures, audio/video recording and distribution of any virtual 

educational experience by others in order to protect student privacy, proactively prevent potential 

cyberbullying, prevent the distribution of copyrighted materials and comply with Massachusetts law. 

Please note that in Massachusetts, it is illegal to record another person through any medium without 

his or her knowledge.  

3. FRCS has made good faith efforts to ensure virtual platforms it uses comply with child Internet 

protection and confidentiality laws and do not sell, use or disclose any personally identifiable 

information or data for commercial purposes or to third parties. There are potential risks for Internet 

interruptions, unauthorized interruption by third party and technical difficulties. You can minimize the 

risk of breaches in confidentiality by not sharing any links, user name and passwords used for virtual 

opportunities access.    

4. Students, and where appropriate parents/guardians, agree to engage in live remote educational 

experiences dressed appropriately, in a quiet, private area to the extent practicable given the 

circumstances, in order to minimize background noise and distractions and to protect the integrity of 

student engagement as well as student confidentiality.  

5. The laws that protect the privacy and conf

apply to remote educational opportunities just as they do during an in-person service. 

Parents/guardians and other household members who normally are not privy to day-to-day classroom 

and group service discussions agree to respect and keep confidential any personal or private 

information (e.g. disability status) inadvertently discovered about other students due to proximity of 

virtual education. 

 and Chromebook Acceptable Use Policy applies to 

virtual learning, including school-issued devices and networks.  
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Staffing and Operations 
The School will be following the Guidance released from State Public Health Officials, the DESE and the CDC 
and are doing everything we can to ensure that our school community is safe.   Because public health trends 
are changing every day, we are prepared to transition between 100% Remote and the Hybrid Model at any 
time. While the guidance from the State encourages schools to welcome students back into our classrooms in 
the fall, we have made decisions based on our Regional nature of our students and staff.  Beginning with 100% 
Remote Learning will enable staff to test procedures, technology, and other operations before students enter 
the building. The Hybrid plan will ensure we reduce the number of students in classrooms so that we can meet 
social distance regulations, and our Phase In approach allows us time to tweak procedures continuously, as 
needed. Under these circumstances, along with an extra week of professional development training prior to 
the start of school and professional development opportunities on Wednesday of each week, there is plenty 
of time to present COVID safety measures, ask and answer questions, review new procedures and strengthen 
our Remote Learning program. 

Training will be provided to staff during Orientation, on up-to-date safety information and precautions 

including hygiene and other measures aimed at reducing disease transmission, including: 

Social distancing, hand-washing, proper use of face coverings. 

Self-screening at home, including temperature and symptom checks. 

Importance of not coming to work if ill. 

When to seek medical attention if symptoms become severe. 

Which underlying health conditions may make individuals more susceptible to contracting and 

suffering from a severe case of the virus. 

School Personnel may screen staff and students as needed, and as trends change in order to maintain safety. 

Daily Assessment of health, if necessary, will include: 

Confirmation that staff members and students are not experiencing any symptoms such as fever 

(100.0 and above) or chills, cough, shortness of breath, sore throat, fatigue, headache, muscle/body 

aches, runny nose/congestion, new loss of taste or smell, or nausea, vomiting or diarrhea 

Confirmation that students and staff members have 

diagnosed with COVID-

tested positive for COVID-19, caring for a person who has tested positive for COVID-19, being within 6 

feet of a person who has tested positive for COVID-19 for 15 minutes or more, or coming in direct 

contact with secretions (e.g., sharing utensils, being coughed on) from a person who has tested 

positive for COVID-19, while that person was symptomatic  

Confirmation that staff or students have not been asked to self-isolate or quarantine by their doctor 

or a local public health official 
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Staff and students who fail to meet the above criteria must be sent home 

Additional Safety Precautions in Place

The School will encourage internal and external meetings to be held virtually to minimize contact 

across staff and reduce opportunity for transmission. 

No large group or student assemblies will be held until further notice. 

The School will maintain a log of delivery people, parents, and temporary visitors to support contact 

tracing (name, date, time, contact information)  

Waiting areas will be closed and visitors will be asked to wait outside or in cars until it is time for their 

appointment or until their child is dismissed. 

Non-essential amenities (materials, supplies, furniture, not necessary for instruction, etc.) will be 

removed from classrooms, and other common areas. 

For services provided in-home, the School will delay the service or if the family indicates potential 

COVID-19 positive person in the household. 

Staff may not come in to work if feeling ill. 

If the School is notified of a positive case in any of the buildings, the employer will notify the local 

Board of Health (LBOH) in Foxborough and assist the LBOH as reasonably requested to advise likely 

contacts to isolate and self-quarantine. Testing of other staff members may be recommended 

consistent with guidance and / or at the request of the LBOH. 

I

Mandatory Safety Standards for Workplace will be posted publicly for staff. 

The School will be closed on Wednesdays to allow for on-going off-hour sanitation and cleaning 

Visitors and service providers will be limited to on site access to the building.  

Shipping and deliveries will be completed in designated areas. 

Additional Safety Precautions in Place 

Visitors and outside vendors will be encouraged to make appointments in advance to receive service 

or deliver materials if possible. 

The School will offer 100% Remote programming and accommodations for those in high-risk 

populations as defined by the CDC. 
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Staff who are particularly vulnerable to COVID-19 according to the Centers for Disease Control will be 

encouraged to stay home or have their duties reassigned to reduce contact with staff and students.

Staff are strongly encouraged to self-identify symptoms or any close contact to a known or suspected 

COVID-19 case to the School Nurse Leader. 

Staff members who test positive for COVID-19 are required to disclose to the School Nurse Leader for 

purposes of cleaning / disinfecting and contact tracing. 

Staff members who have been exposed to COVID-19 and are in quarantine and/or waiting on test 

results, should also notify the School Nurse Leader. 

 

Certain employees may be eligible to take time off or to have other accommodations under specific 
circumstances provided by law.  The summary below is written with specific attention to the COVID-19 
pandemic and is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all circumstances in which employees may be entitled 
to time off or accommodations. 

Under the , employees may be eligible for paid sick leave 
and/or expanded family leave for specified reasons related to COVID-19.  Unless extended by law, these 
provisions are applicable until December 31, 2020, when they will expire.   

Qualifying reasons for up to two weeks of paid (or partially paid) sick time: 

Under the FFCRA, an employee qualifies for up to two weeks of paid sick time if the employee is unable to 
work (or unable to telework) because the employee: 

1. is subject to a Federal, State, or local quarantine or isolation order related to COVID-19; 
2. has been advised by a health care provider to self-quarantine related to COVID-19; 
3. is experiencing COVID-19 symptoms and is seeking a medical diagnosis; 
4. is caring for an individual subject to an order described in (1) or self-quarantine as described in (2); 
5. is caring for a child whose school or place of care is closed (or child care provider is unavailable) for 

reasons related to COVID-19; or 
6. is experiencing any other substantially-similar condition specified by the Secretary of Health and 

Human Services, in consultation with the Secretaries of Labor and Treasury. 

This sick time may be paid or partially paid depending on the circumstances of the need for time off.    

*Click here to review more information on the Families First Coronavirus Response Act  
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Expanded FMLA leave for up to 12 weeks to care for a child:  

Employees may also be eligible for up to a maximum of 12 weeks of time off under the Family & Medical 

whose school or child care provider is closed or unavailable for reasons related to COVID-19 and there is no 
other suitable caregiver  (e.g., another parent) available to care for the child.  This time off is partially paid at 

12,000 in the aggregate.  Because 
this is a form of FMLA leave, the employee may have already used some of the maximum 12 weeks available 
in the previous 12-month period and may have less than 12 weeks currently available. 

Employees with an underlying medical condition: 

Employees who are concerned about returning to work because of an underlying medical condition that 
renders them immunocompromised or otherwise at greater risk of COVID-19 may be eligible for time off or 
other reasonable accommodation for a   If the 
employee is a qualified individual with a disability impacted by COVID-19, we will engage in an informal, 
interactive process in an effort to identify whether there are any reasonable accommodations that would 
allow the employee to perform the essential functions of their job and that will not pose an undue hardship 
for the school.  Because disabilities and accommodations may take many different forms, each situation will 
be addressed on a case-by-case basis. 

Employees with concerns about safety/health of another: 

Another category of employees who may be reluctant to return to work or seeking accommodations are those 
who are concerned about the safety of others in their household.  This could include, for example, employees 
who live with elderly relatives, young children, or family members who are immunocompromised.  Options for 
these employees are limited and will be addressed on a case-by-case basis with reference to ongoing 
operational needs of the school.   

Make an appointment to discuss your needs: 

Should your request for accommodation and/or time off fall under FFCRA or the ADA, we will move forward 
under the requirements of the law.  Should your request fall under another reason, you will work with Human 
Resources to find resolution to your concerns. 

Please reach out to Human Resources to set an appointment to discuss your individual situation. 

Recent Travel Ban: 

Governor Baker required that effective August 1, 2020, all visitors and returning residents entering 
Massachusetts must follow new travel orders. The Commonwealth has made great progress to slow the 
spread of COVID-19 and gradually re-open the economy, and all visitors and residents returning to the state 
have a responsibility to help us keep transmission levels as low as possible. Read the full order here. 

If you are planning on traveling outside of the areas listed in the link above, within 2 weeks prior to the start of 
returning to work, you must follow the guidelines of obtaining a negative COVID test or quarantining for 14 
days.  If you have not been exposed, but must quarantine due to voluntary travel outside of the designated 
area, this will either be charged to sick time or will qualify for unpaid time off. 
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Cleaning and Disinfecting 
Cleaning and disinfecting is a priority and will be a shared responsibility among facilities staff, external 
cleaning vendors and an additional responsibility of all staff members to support disinfecting of desks, office 
space, high traffic areas like door knobs and shared spaces. 

The School is committed to new procedures to address sanitation and disinfection of hard surfaces, including: 

Cleaning commonly touched surfaces in restrooms (e.g., toilet seats, doorknobs, stall handles, sinks, 

paper towel dispensers, soap dispensers) frequently and in accordance with CDC guidelines. 

Conducting frequent cleaning and disinfection of buildings, classrooms and offices (at least daily, and 

more frequently if feasible). 

Maintaining cleaning logs that include date, time, and scope of cleaning. 

Conducting frequent disinfecting of high traffic areas and high-touch surfaces (e.g., doorknobs, rolling 

carts, bathrooms) 

Three Electrostatic Sprayers have been purchased to supplement CM Cleaning routine service. 

Operations Staff will use the sprayers to clean high touch areas as well as to daily disinfect the 

gional Buses. 

Common areas and frequently touched surfaces should be cleaned daily on arrival. 

Nightly cleaning will be conducted.  

Frequently touched areas will be disinfected regularly though out the day. 

Cleaning supplies will be available, and employees are encouraged to clean and    disinfect workspaces 

and student desks throughout the workday. 

Computer keyboards and any electronics should be wiped with paper towel sprayed with disinfectant. 

DO NOT spray disinfectant directly on electronics.  

Posters should be displayed with reminders on how to prevent the spread of germs.  

Declutter your classroom (Make sure all surfaces are cleared and able to be cleaned readily) 

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE): 

PPE including hand sanitizer, spray bottles and disinfectant wipes will be provided to all teaching areas 

including classrooms and small group pull out spaces, for the start of school. 

Disposable masks, gloves, and gowns will also be available for pre-determined staff due to the nature 

of their job. 

Staff and students are expected to provide their own cloth face covering. 
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Teachers/Staff may request additional supplies or replenish their supplies through entering an FMX 

ticket. Wipe buckets must be returned with your request for replenishment and will be refilled. 

the District office area and will be 

distributed by request only. It is important to control the inventory so we can order accordingly and 

proportionately to use. 

N95 masks require fittings and will be available through the school for Nursing staff only.  

K-1 Teachers and staff will be issued face shields. 

Wear gloves when contact with blood, mucous membranes, or non-intact skin could occur.  

Especially during: 

o Food preparation 

o Screening activities requiring contact 

o Remove and throw away gloves after caring for a student and do not wear the same gloves 

with more than one student. 

o Wash hands after removing gloves. 

o 

students. 

o Hair should be tied back or covered. 

o Gowns should be worn when appropriate.  

Positive Case Procedure: 

In the event of a positive case, the school will determine which areas of the building will be shut down so the 
site can be scheduled for a deep cleaning and disinfecting of the classroom/area in accordance with CDC 
guidance. 

Additional Safety Precautions: 

Windows and doors will be opened to increase airflow, where possible. 

Large Areas/ Places of Assembly 

Playground  

One class may use the playground at a time. Students will remain in their cohort and will wash 

hands/sanitize before and after recess/break time. Facilities staff will clean playground equipment at 

the beginning of each day. 
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Staff Rooms 

Six foot markers will be placed on the floor to designate proper distancing. Keurig, refrigerator, 

microwave may be used but no chairs will be available to prevent congregating. Sanitizer will be 

available in staff rooms. 

Furniture removed 

Fridge and microwave still available 

Copy Machine/ Mail Area  

Six foot markers will be placed on the floor to designate proper distancing.  

Cleaning supplies will be available for individuals to wipe equipment before and after use. 

 

Bathrooms 

Bathrooms will be monitored and supervised. 

Six foot markers will be placed on the floor to designate proper distancing. 

Hand blowers have been removed and paper towel dispensers have been installed 

Computer Labs 

All students will sanitize hands upon entering the computer lab. 

All areas will be wiped with sanitizer between student use. 

Cafeteria 

The MS/ HS cafeteria will be reserved for workspace for staff. 

Gymnasiums 

All gym classes will be held outside. 

Use of locker rooms 

Shared equipment 

Get from Robyn 

A written plan will be in place for indoor use. 

Otherwise no one will use the gymnasiums 
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Programming 
Extended Day  

 Begin registration for Extended Day in September.  

 Program will phase in as needed based on grade level attendance in the schedule above.  

 The program will look very different. It will be simple and stationary. Room assignments will 

be mandatory and activity choices will not be available.   

Food Service - Lunch / Breakfast 

 Families will use the same order system to sign up for the week. 

 Both breakfast and lunch must be ordered in advance online. 

 Staff will be required to order online in advance. 

 Student lunches will be delivered to classrooms. 

 Staff will pick up lunch in cafeteria. 

 Trash cans will be left outside each classroom door and removed / disposed of immediately 

following lunch. 
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Communication
Communication during these uncertain times is paramount. The latest information about current status and 
Return to School Planning is emailed directly to staff and families and posted to our website and social media.

There is a designated page on the School website for COVID information, resources, news and School plans to 
address the impact.  

Additional Resources and Supports: 

Principals will hold Virtual meetings before the start of school to present the plans and to present an 

overview of the plan for Remote Learning, at the district level. All families and staff are invited and 

encouraged to attend.  

Teachers will hold virtual open houses and will talk to parents about setting up effective environments 

at home for learning as well as a day in the life of remote learning and a day in the life of hybrid 

learning.  

A Question and Answer Page is set up on the website and Frequently asked questions will 

continuously be posted for families and staff. 

Parent Ambassadors are set up to help new families navigate the School website, direct them where 

to address questions, and orient them to the school community. 

Translation for important news regarding COVID Plans will also be included in family emails and 

posted on the website. 

Ongoing family and staff surveys will be used to capture input as the School opens and moves 

forward. 

Periodic Zoom Town Halls will be scheduled as the year progresses to keep families informed. 

Virtual Parent Engagement programming and workshops are being set up to support families with 

educational information, community resources, and parenting workshops. 

Special education students will continue to receive services and/or accommodations during both 

remote and hybrid instructional models. Written notice of how services/ accommodations will be 

provided to families will be communicated individually.  

 English Language Education will continue to be provided during both our remote and hybrid 

models.  ESL teachers will reach out to families to discuss service delivery, 
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Interscholastic Athletics
With the recent decision to begin our school year with Full Remote Learning on September 14th, and phase-in 
the Hybrid Model until November 9th, Foxborough Regional Charter School will not participate in the MCSAO 
Fall Athletics season.  As the situation evolves, we will update students and families with details for plans to 
safely reintroduce our school's Athletics program. 

State Guidance on 2020-21 Modified Sports Seasons  

All sports must adhere to the minimum modifications outlined in the EEA guidance to achieve Level 3 play 
(inter-team competition). If those modifications cannot be met, the sport may consider moving to a later 

guidelines. Guidance from EEA will be re-issued prior to the start of each season, based on public health 
data, testing availability, and any new information, and MIAA will make final decisions for each season 
following that updated guidance.  

 
At this time, the sports listed above have been conditionally approved for the fall season, provided they are 
able to meet the minimum modifications outlined in the EEA guidance. For the fall season football, cheer, 
and unified basketball will be practice only, using the cohort method described in the EEA guidance. 
Schools/districts choosing to engage in practice for these sports must complete the Sport Attestation 
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Compliance form and keep it on file. 

Higher risk sports in later seasons (including hockey, basketball, wrestling, boys lacrosse, and rugby) will 
continue to be evaluated in light of health metrics and the EEA guidance and final decisions will be made 
closer to the start of each season. Those that are ultimately not approved by MIAA to be played in a season 
will be moved or considered for later in the year during the floating season, as reflected above. All sports, 
regardless of risk level, must follow the EEA guidelines, and moderate and higher risk sports must adopt the 
required minimum modifications for achieving different levels of play. To be able to engage in competitive 
play, modifications should include eliminating deliberate contact, modifying or eliminating intermittent 
contact, and increasing distancing. If these modifications are not possible, the sport may achieve a modified 
Level 2 play (competitive practice) using the cohort method outlined in the EEA guidance. 

Again, schools/districts choosing to engage in practice for these sports must complete the Sport Attestation 
Compliance form and keep it on file. The EEA guidance also outlines best practices for all sports, including the 
use of protective equipment and masks. The sport specific modifications and plan for implementation will be 
developed by MIAA in consultation with their medical advisors. 

Based on the schedule above, school districts should work with MIAA to develop their schedules for the year 
and be ready to modify those schedules as needed. More detailed information on the guidelines for practices 
and the start of competitions will be outlined in the guidance that MIAA will release. 

Sports participation for remote learners 

 of average daily cases 
per 100,000 residents and which therefore have their high school students learning remotely at the start of 
a season, must postpone their entire season, including practices, until the floating season later in the year. 

Districts designated as yellow, green, or unshaded based on the DPH metric that nonetheless have their high 
school students learning remotely at the start of a season may similarly delay their season to the floating 
season. If a yellow, green, or unshaded district that is only offering remote learning to its high school 
students wishes to participate in the regularly scheduled sports season, this must be approved by the local 
school committee. 

The MIAA will develop a timeline for looking at data prior to the start of each season to determine which 
color-coded designation a district should fall into for the purposes of engaging in sports. For example, the 

-coded designation/eligibility on September 1 to determine initial 
eligibility and check again on October 1 to determine if the school remains eligible to participate in the fall 
season.
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Metrics
Massachusetts education officials set coronavirus metrics to help inform school reopening.  

Color-coded coronavirus metrics based on case counts in a given community were set by the state education 
board and will be used to inform school reopening plans, indicating many communities should have remote or 
hybrid models. 

The codes, outlined by Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Commissioner Jeffrey Riley to 
 

Communities in the red zone, those with average daily case counts of eight or more per 100,000 residents 
should have remote learning, according to the metrics. 

Those in the yellow zone, with daily average counts of four to eight per 100,000 residents should operate on a 
hybrid or remote plan, while communities in the green with less than four cases per 100,000 can have an in-
person or hybrid model. 

past two weeks. Communities falling into that category can have in-person learning or hybrid. 

Districts are expected to follow the color-
 

Districts may make immediate changes to plans based on the metrics or wait for other data reports and allow 
for further time for consultation before making these updates. 

The metrics will serve as a guide to making initial reopening decisions but also for future decision-making if 
coronavirus conditions change over time. 

In addition to the guidelines, districts will also monitor test positivity and take into consideration multiple 
weeks of data before making any decisions. 

The metrics align with a color-coded state map of average daily case rates per 100,000 that was recently 
released and will be updated on a regular basis by the state. 

Foxborough Regional Charter School has unique challenges and does not fit this metric table as easily as 
single district schools. 

The regional nature of the School, as well as K-12 scope, sharing facilities and transportation, adds 
complicated layers of decision making in order to ensure safety for the community as a whole. FRCS will make 
decisions guided by the metrics, with special consideration given to each of the 30 individual towns from 
which our students are enrolled, as well as the impact the fluctuating numbers may present. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

FRCS Staff Orientation:         
2020  2021 
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Dear Faculty and Staff, 

This past year tested us in many ways beyond the norm.  From building leadership changes to 
cyber-terror negotiations to a lengthy school closure to a challenging budget process to a 

ntered enough 
change to last our entire educational careers!   

across our state and our school community.  These are serious issues with real feelings, 
perspectives, and impact which continue to highlight the importance of respect and seeking to 
understand.  We must constantly listen and ensure our actions align with our needs; that our 
impact matches our intent.  We will continue to invest time and energy in these efforts to ensure 
all we do encompasses the needs of all our students. 

The challenges we faced this year also give us an opportunity to step outside of our thinking, our 
experiences, and often times our limited views of situations and problems, and strive for that 
growth and open mindset that allows flexibility and creativity in finding solutions.  We have the 
responsibility to ask questions, to seek perspectives different than our own experiences, and to 
rely on others and value them for their knowledge, skills, and experiences.  We need to embrace 
our own love of learning to ensure we are creative and inquisitive, now more than ever. 

Before we turn our full attention to orientation, professional development, opportunities to 
collaborate and plan, and preparations for a new school year, please know how much I 
appreciate your positive and respectful dialogue and insight these past few months.  Team FRCS 
has continued to shine with resiliency, professionalism, and purpose.  Thank you! 

I wish you all a wonderful school year. 

Sincerely, 

Mark 
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Foxborough Regional Charter School
2020-2021 New Faculty and Staff

Position School New Employee

Director of School Culture and Climate District Keonna Greer

Grade 3 Teacher Elementary School Casey Goodman

School Culture Liaison Middle School Judith Belfleur

Grade 5 ELA Teacher Middle School Crosby Semeraro

Grade 6 ELA Teacher Middle School George Eddis

Grade 6 Social Studies Teacher Middle School Lauren Toner

Grade 8 Math Teacher Middle School David Hindman

Grade 8 Math Teacher Middle School Jaynemarie Dundulis

Grade 8 ELA Teacher Middle School Teresa Yoder

HS Spanish Teacher High School Rene Altamar

MS Spanish Teacher Middle School Teresa Andrade Borja

Art Teacher Elementary School Elementary School Emily Long

Paraprofessional HS Academic Support Student Services Caitlin Marshall

Special Education Teacher ES - Grade 3 Student Services Brianne Federico

Special Education Teacher MS - Academic Support Student Services Brittany Maher

ES Grade 3 ELE Teacher Student Services Jennifer Johnson

Grade 8 Social Studies Teacher Middle School Kathryn Mulvoy

Grade 3 Teacher Elementary School Lauren Mason

Special Education Teacher - HS Student Services Rafael Garcia

HS Spanish Teacher High School Laura Walker

MS Spanish Teacher Middle School Victor Donaire 

Grade 4 Teacher Elementary School Brianne Akers

Grade 7 Science Teacher Middle School Rebecca Green

Paraprofessional - MS Student Services Hannah Patalano



 
Equity and Inclusion Committee 

September 1, 2020 Meeting Notes  
 
 

In addition to welcoming two new members, Keonna Geer, our new Director of School Climate and Culture, and HS 
junior, Kusumita Savaram, the Committee focused much of the discussion on the work of the Professional 
Development Subcommittee: 

1. Annie Azarloza is working with Rapid Learning on their 4 hour virtual program for our staff called 
Unconscious Bias: Fostering Inclusion, which is designed to increase awareness, shift perspectives and 
define action steps that will make our culture more inclusive.   
 

2. 
where she will then be able to bring that knowledge back to FRCS and train our instructional staff. 

3. Nikole Skoko has been working with the Glasgow Group, which is a consortium of consultants providing 
skills, tools, and experiences through a lens of diversity, equity, and inclusion that enhance and deepen 
schools', organizations', and individuals' capacity for transformation.  We hope they can provide PD to our 
staff and also engage our students. 

4. Amanda Goddard, our Assistant Director of Student Services (English Language Education), has been 
working with Dr. DT Henry on his series of PD for our staff:  Race & Diversity for White and Non-Black 
People Seeking Change. 

5. We are in our second year of District-wide Professional Development Initiative: Universal Design 
Learning.  Each year we train 15-20 teachers on UDL.  UDL provides all students an equal opportunity to 
succeed. It offers flexibility in ways students access material and show what they know.  Our 15 teachers 
this year will attend 26 trainings on UDL. 

6. Thanks to Keonna Geer, our new Director of School Climate and Culture, who is an expert in Restorative 
Justice, we have decided to move in the direction of 100% Restorative Justice practices in an effort to step 
away from punitive measure of discipline, which have shown to disproportionally affect minorities.  Staff 
have been fully trained and we will implement it across our district with fidelity this coming school year.  

7. Last Friday our Math consultants came in to provide PD to our MS math teachers as we roll out our new 
Math curriculum.  Ready Math is designed to provide equal access to our teachers and lends itself to 
culturally responsive pedagogy. 

8. Kathleen Foley, our new K-12 Curriculum Specialist, is in her second year of running a yearlong Equity and 
Inclusion course for our instructional staff.  We will be offering an accelerated version of this course next 
summer in an effort to have all instructional staff trained in the next 3 years. 

9. Nikole Skoko, Keonna Geer, and Nancy LeBlanc, our HS guidance counselor will be running a workshop this 
week called We All See color!, a diversity, equity and inclusion workshop for all staff that brings to light 
implicit bias and how we can learn to be cognizant that exists as we learn to shift the way we think. 

10. Yesterday Amanda Goddard along with six other General Education and English Language Education 
teachers offered staff three workshops: 1) Engaging English Language Students During Remote Learning; 2) 
Sheltered English Immersion Strategies Workshop; and 3) Ackno . 

The next EI meeting will be on Wednesday, September 30, 2020 at 8:30 a.m. 


